Notice of Meeting

Northern Area Planning
Committee
Date:

Thursday 27 January 2022

Time:

5.30 pm

Venue:

Conference Room 1, Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, Andover,
Hampshire, SP10 3AJ

For further information or enquiries please contact:
Sally Prior - 01264 368024
sprior@testvalley.gov.uk
Legal and Democratic Service
Test Valley Borough Council,
Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road,
Andover, Hampshire,
SP10 3AJ
www.testvalley.gov.uk

The recommendations contained in the Agenda are made by the Officer and these
recommendations may or may not be accepted by the Committee.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME
If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon
on the working day before the meeting.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Membership of Northern Area Planning Committee
MEMBER

WARD

Councillor C Borg-Neal (Chairman)

Andover Harroway

Councillor T Burley (Vice-Chairman)

Andover Harroway

Councillor Z Brooks

Andover Millway

Councillor J Budzynski

Andover St Mary's

Councillor D Coole

Anna

Councillor C Ecclestone

Andover Millway

Councillor V Harber

Andover St Mary's

Councillor L Lashbrook

Charlton & the Pentons

Councillor P Lashbrook

Bellinger

Councillor N Lodge

Andover Downlands

Councillor J Neal

Andover Millway

Councillor K North

Andover Romans

Councillor R Rowles

Andover Winton

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Northern Area Planning Committee
Thursday 27 January 2022
AGENDA
The order of these items may change as a result of members
of the public wishing to speak
1

Apologies

2

Public Participation

3

Declarations of Interest

4

Urgent Items

5

Minutes of the meeting held on 6 January 2022

6

Information Notes

7

19/01485/FULLN - 13.06.2019

4-9
10 - 60

(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION)
SITE: Land at Picket Piece, Ox Drove, Picket Piece
ANDOVER TOWN (DOWNLANDS)
CASE OFFICER: Miss Emma Jones
8

19/02639/FULLN - 04.11.2019
(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION)
SITE: 18 Nestor Close, Andover, Hampshire, SP10 3JX
ANDOVER TOWN (HARROWAY)
CASE OFFICER: Miss Emma Jones

61 - 78

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

ITEM 6

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE
INFORMATION NOTES

Availability of Background Papers
Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter. Requests to inspect the
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager. Although there
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed
on the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to
the Head of Planning and Building.
Reasons for Committee Consideration
The majority of applications are determined by the Head of Planning and Building in
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s
Constitution. However, some applications are determined at the Area Planning
Committees and this will happen if any of the following reasons apply:
(a) Applications which are contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft
development plan or other statement of approved planning policy where
adverse representations have been received and which is recommended
for approval.
(b) Applications (excluding notifications) where a Member requests in writing,
with reasons and within the Application Publicity Expiry Date, that they be
submitted to Committee. A Member can withdraw this request at any time
prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination under
delegated powers.
(c) Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in
which the Council holds an interest, for its own developments except for the
approval of minor developments.
(d) Applications where the Head of Planning and Building Services recommends
refusal of an application solely on the basis of failure to achieve nutrient
neutrality where a Ward Member requests in writing, with reasons, within 72
hours of notification of the recommendation for refusal that they be submitted
to Committee for determination. A Member can withdraw this request at any
time prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination
under delegated powers.
(e) To determine applications (excluding applications for advertisement consent,
certificates of lawfulness, listed building consent, and applications resulting
from the withdrawal by condition of domestic permitted development rights;

Page 4

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B, C, D, E, F, G, and H of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or as
amended) on which a material planning objection(s) has been received within
the Application Publicity Expiry Date and which cannot be resolved by
negotiation or through the imposition of conditions and where the officer’s
recommendation is for approval, following consultation with the Ward
Members, the latter having the right to request that the application be
reported to Committee for decision.
Public Speaking at the Meeting
The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public,
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on
applications. Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building
Services or from Democratic Services at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst, Weyhill
Road, Andover. Copies are usually sent to all those who have made
representations. Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Democratic Services
within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to address the
Committee.
Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors on the Area
Committee who have personal interests or where a Member has pre-determined
his/her position on the relevant application, three minutes for the Parish Council,
three minutes for all objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for
the applicant/agent and relevant Ward Members who are not Committee Members
will have a maximum of five minutes. Where there are multiple supporters or
multiple objectors wishing to speak the Chairman may limit individual speakers to
less than three minutes with a view to accommodating multiple speakers within the
three minute time limit. Speakers may be asked questions by the Members of the
Committee, but are not permitted to ask questions of others or to join in the debate.
Speakers are not permitted to circulate or display plans, photographs, illustrations or
textual material during the Committee meeting as any such material should be sent
to the Members and officers in advance of the meeting to allow them time to
consider the content.
Content of Officer’s Report
It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted. However, the
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full
response must ask to consult the application file.

Page 5

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions
The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time
the report was prepared. A different recommendation may be made at the meeting
should circumstances change and the officer’s recommendations may not be
accepted by the Committee.
In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the
officer’s recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice
Chairman. Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s
Rules of Procedure. A binding decision is made only when the Committee has
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and,
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the
Council.
Conditions and Reasons for Refusal
Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s
recommendation.
Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application
recommended for refusal. In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being
made.
Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation
For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section
106 agreement). The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land,
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority.
New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new
development and its future occupants. Typically, such requirements include
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing
fields and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport.
Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to
grant permission subject to the listed conditions. However, it should be noted that
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning
application determination date to allow the application to be issued. If this does not
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within
the timescale set to deal with the application.

Page 6

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Deferred Applications
Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows:
*

The applicant may choose to withdraw the application. No further action
would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed.

*

Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or
amended plans have not been approved or there is insufficient time for
consultation on amendments.

*

The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments.

*

The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the
proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.
These site visits are not public meetings.

Visual Display of Plans and Photographs
Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its
surroundings. The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from
Ordnance Survey and to scale. The other plans are not a complete copy of the
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced
from large size paper plans. If further information is needed or these plans are
unclear please refer to the submitted application on the Council’s website. Plans
displayed at the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to
the written reports.
Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the
officers usually take these. Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers.
Human Rights
The European Convention on Human Rights” (“ECHR”) was brought into English
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), as from October 2000.
The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR.
There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions:
*

Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property.

*

Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life.

It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in
accordance with the EU concept of “proportionality”, any interference with these
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and
must go no further than necessary.

Page 7

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and
against competing private interests. Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in
the decision making processes of the Committee. However, Members must
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all
planning applications and enforcement action.
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC)
The Council has a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act
2006 as follows: "every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard,
so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of
conserving biodiversity".
It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process
leading up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan. Further
regard is had in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the
biodiversity checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental
Statements and any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on
biodiversity aspects of the proposals. Provided any recommendations arising from
these processes are conditioned as part of any grant of planning permission (or
included in reasons for refusal of any planning application) then the duty to ensure
that biodiversity interest has been conserved, as far as practically possible, will be
considered to have been met.
Other Legislation
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan for the
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016), and ‘made’
Neighbourhood Plans. Material considerations are defined by Case Law and
includes, amongst other things, draft Development Plan Documents (DPD),
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and other relevant guidance including
Development Briefs, Government advice, amenity considerations, crime and
community safety, traffic generation and safety.
On the 19th February 2019 the Government published a revised National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous
NPPF published in 2018. The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning
decisions.
So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. Decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This does not
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision
making. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date
development plan, permission should not usually be granted. Local planning
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan,

Page 8

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should
not be followed.
For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development
means:



Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development
plan without delay; or
Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting
permission unless:
o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or assets
of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or
o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the revised
NPPF when taken as a whole.

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF. Due weight should be given to
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight
that may be given).

Page 9

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

ITEM 7

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL
AMENDMENTS

CASE OFFICER

19/01485/FULLN
FULL APPLICATION - NORTH
13.06.2019
Wates Developments and David Wilson Homes
Southern
Land at Picket Piece, Ox Drove, Picket Piece,
ANDOVER TOWN (DOWNLANDS)
Erection of 16 residential dwellings with associated
access, parking, open space and landscaping
Amended/additional plans and information received:
 03.04.2020
 14.07.2020
 09.09.2020
 05.02.2021
 17.02.2021
 03.03.2021
 04.03.2021
 20.09.2021
 09.11.2021
Miss Emma Jones

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application is presented to Northern Area Planning Committee at the
request of a member.
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
2.1 The site lies within the Locksbridge Park residential development at Picket
Piece, to the eastern side of Andover. The site has been grassed and levelled
as a result of a requirement to reserve the land for the purposes of a junior
sports pitch (discussed in more detail later in this report). The site sits within a
complex of public open space provision, including a youth sports pitch, a tennis
court, a pavilion, and a children’s play area, all of which are situated to the north
and north east and are also served by a car park. To the north west and south
west of the application site are residential properties. To the south east of the
site is the Ox Drove highway.
3.0 PROPOSAL
3.1 Erection of 16 residential dwellings with associated access, parking, open space
and landscaping
3.2 Additional/amended plans and information have been submitted during the
consideration of the application in respect of the following matters;

Page 10

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022










Ecology;
Drainage;
Highways;
Landscaping/levels;
Nutrient neutrality;
Parking;
Window and dwelling positions;
Garages

4.0 HISTORY
4.1 18/01864/FULLN; Erection of 16 residential dwellings, with associated access,
parking, open space and landscaping – Withdrawn - 20.09.2018
4.2 18/01891/OBLN; Discharge of Planning Obligations on 10/00242/OUTN in
relation to Schedule 1, Clauses 48-50 (to reserve the site for the purpose of a
junior sports pitch) – Refused - 12.09.2018, for the reason;
01. REFUSE the proposed Discharge of Planning Obligation as the relevant
Planning Obligation continues to serve a useful purpose in that it
reserves the site for the purposes of a junior sports pitch which is needed
to meet the full range of leisure and recreational needs of the community,
and efforts have been made by the Council to bring the junior sports pitch
forward for community use. Furthermore it is not clear what alternative
open space, sport or recreation facility could be provided at land to the
rear of Lan Clipper, and whether there is such a need for this alternative
provision as to outweigh the loss of the junior sports pitch. In addition, it
is has not been demonstrated that the junior sports pitch could be
replaced by an equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and
quality and in a suitable location, with land to the rear of Lan Clipper
being considered an unsuitable location by the Council for the provision
of a junior sports pitch. The proposal is contrary to policy LHW1 of the
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 and paragraph 97 of the
National Planning Policy Framework. The planning obligation shall
continue to have effect without modification.
Appeal Allowed - 18.10.2019. The Planning Inspector concluded, in summary;
I conclude the planning obligation does not comply with the tests in the
Regulations as the disputed paragraphs were not necessary to make the
development acceptable. Putting that aside, of itself, the obligation does
not and cannot actually secure the appeal site as a Junior Sports Pitch
for the use of the residents of either ‘Phase 1’ or ‘Phase 2’ of Picket
Piece. I consequently find it does not ‘continue to serve a useful purpose’
in this regard.
4.3 15/01377/RESN; Development of 129 dwellings, local centre, football pitch,
pavilion, children’s’ play area and tennis court with associated access streets,
car parking and landscaping - Phase 3 East Area (pursuant to outline Planning
Permission 10/00242/OUTN) – Approved - 17.12.2015

Page 11

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

4.4

10/00242/OUTN; Outline - Mixed use development comprising up to 530
dwellings, local centre offering community facilities and retail units, public open
space, vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access and landscaping – Refused 30.09.2010 – Appeal Allowed - 30.06.2011

5.0
5.1

CONSULTATIONS
Landscape; Comments made regarding amendments needed to the proposed
planting scheme.

5.2

Trees; No objection, subject to condition

5.3

Ecology; Requested condition

5.4

Environmental Protection; Recommended conditions.

5.5

Community and Leisure; Comments, summarised as follows;
 The houses are fronting on the open space and football pitch and the
integrity of the hedge along Ox Drove is maintained;
 I would like to draw your attention to the potential conflict between the
now isolated football pitch and proposed housing. It is likely balls will
travel over the boundary into the housing or on to the road. For this
reason we need to consider the inclusion of ball-stop fencing along the
boundary which is consistent with the approach along the boundary of
Escort. Given the change to the site adjacent I would expect that this
would be at the applicant’s expense;
 It would be helpful to understand whether the applicant intends to
transfer the open space to the Local Authority? I would also like to see
the landscape plans including level drawings once available;
 Shame that this development will lead to the loss of a valuable sporting
and recreational space on an already overdeveloped area;
 Concerns regarding the entrance and exit roads adding to an already
congested area;
 S106 contribution required towards provision of community facilities.

5.6

Refuse/Recycling; No comment

5.7

Planning Policy; No objection, subject to obligations in respect of Public Open
Space

5.8

Housing; No objection

5.9

Archaeology (HCC); Would not raise any archaeological issues in this case.

5.10

Highways (HCC); No objection

5.11

Lead Local Flood Authority (HCC); Recommended condition

5.12

Southern Water; No objection subject to conditions

Page 12

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

5.13

Sport England; Objection;
 Sport England considers that the application conflicts with Objective 3 in
that it does not meet our objective of providing new facilities to meet
demand. The proposed loss of land allocated for playing field/pitch is
not underpinned by a robust and updated assessment of need which
demonstrates that the pitch is no longer required to meet community
needs for sport.

5.14

Natural England; Consulted on LPA’s Appropriate Assessment in respect of
Nutrient Neutrality – Additional information required as follows;
 An updated nutrients budget calculation to account for the existing land
use of the proposed mitigation land

6.0
6.1

REPRESENTATIONS Expired 19.10.2021
Andover Town Council; Objection, with comments as follows;
 This land has been set aside as a junior football pitch. It would be
detrimental to lose this site as there are too few of these facilities in
Andover;
 The loss of the hedgerow would have an adverse effect on the dormice
population in the area;
 Retention of the hedgerows is important for the species of bats as they
use them as food corridors;
 How many local residents would be affected by this application;
 Concerned about shadowing of existing properties;
 Overlooking existing properties;
 The junior pitches are required for Andover.

6.2

78 x letters; Objections and comments from;
 Drummond Road – numbers 2, 14 (x2), 15
 Galbraith Road – numbers 1 (x2), 5 (x2), 6 (x2), 7, 10, 12 (x2), 16, 20
(x5), 22 (x2), 30
 Tolme Way – numbers 1, 5 (x2), 23 (x2), 27, 29
 Picket Road – numbers 37 (x2)
 Bailey Close – numbers 24
 Chaplin Way – numbers 22 (x2)
 Locksbridge Road – numbers 10, 256 (and an unknown number)
 Errington Road – number 73
 Dexter Court – number 2
 Marchment Close – number 38
 Ox Drove – numbers 10, Longacre, Richmond (8c)
 Walworth Road – Moonstone, The Firs (14)
 Heathcote Road – number 10
 Ox Drove Rise (unknown number)
 Adams Road (unknown number)
 Mortimer Close (unknown number)
 27 x unknown addresses
 Quarry House

Page 13

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Summarised as follows;
 Locksbridge Park is overdeveloped and busy enough, and is lacking
infrastructure and green space;
 Covenant that Wates are basing this application on, states that if the
land wasn’t used within a 5 year period, they could apply to build on the
land. The covenant expired before anyone had moved in, so no one had
access to use the land;
 The block paved roads have been a problem and been re-laid multiple
times already, construction traffic will make this worse and lead to
further road closures to make good;
 Developments of this size have shops, surgeries & schools. All
promised when we moved here. One shop will finally be opening next
month. No school, nursery and only pub is along unlit, unpaved country
lane putting burden on surrounding road network;
 Would be irresponsible to allow further building without first improving
infrastructure and facilities;
 Development is pure greed with no afterthought for existing residents &
the environment;
 Same proposal previously rejected on the basis that there was a need
for green space and additional pitches for increasing Picket Piece
population. Increasing number of houses will be in need of green areas;
 Area used by residents and families for leisure, exercise, dog walking
and relaxation;
 Pandemic has shown how essential outside space like this is for
physical and mental health;
 Losing this space would benefit the developers but would have a huge
detrimental impact on the residents;
 Important to have access to this area due to garden sizes being too
small for children to get adequate exercise to stop child obesity;
 Taking away space gives message that houses are more important that
children’s health, development and well-being;
 Green spaces needed for play and exercise without needing to travel
along busy roads;
 Nearest large recreational area is Picket Twenty which is an
unacceptable walk due to lack of footpaths and speed of traffic on Ox
Drove and B3400;
 Are there any plans to improve the pedestrian connection from Ox
Drove to the Urban Park in Picket Twenty? If this land is to also be used
in calculations of green space for Picket Piece then there must be a
safe way for residents to access it;
 No need for more homes, plenty being built locally and more planned for
the future;
 Green spaces should be cherished and protected;
 Area is full of beautiful wildlife that have moved back since the builders
moved out;
 Area will be building site again, affecting quality of life by increased
traffic, noise, smells, dust;
 Increased traffic and pollution will impact on children’s safety and wellbeing;

Page 14

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022























Less parking and more parked cars, with contractors parking outside
our homes. Problems with access and safety;
Emergency services and the bin men may struggle to access;
Galbraith Road is narrow and barely allows for two cars to pass each
other. Only possible if no cars parking in the road which, due to the lack
of parking spaces/layby’s, is almost a certainty;
Can the roads cope with the additional traffic?
Ox Drove and Walworth Road were not designed for this level of traffic,
no footpaths on Ox Drove and very disjointed footpaths on Walworth
Road making it dangerous for families with young children, more houses
will create even more traffic;
Inadequate parking for 16 homes;
Already been accidents in road due to lack of parking, narrow streets
and blind corner;
All new trees would be uprooted and a long strip of original hedging.
Were told that hedges cannot be disturbed and had to stay to protect
wildlife/natural habitat;
Picket Piece has a population of Dormice. The hedgerow alongside
Galbraith Road would be severely compromised during the building
process and this is one of the habitat locations to a number of Dormice;
The internal width of our garage is 2.7 m, which is below the mandated
width to be considered as a parking space according to the Local Plan.
Hence, according to the same document, on-road parking is required to
fulfil the requirement of two parking spaces for a three-bed property,
which would not be possible with the additional houses planned;
Understand the calculations of local green space include the land to the
south of Ox Drove. This land is not suitable or safe for recreational use
with the exception of the gravel footpath;
Loss of trees and green space will be detrimental to the area and
wildlife that live here, and will also affect oxygen levels in the direct
areas;
Loss of light for homes that live nearby and overshadowing.
Overbearing to existing development in the vicinity;
Temporary loss of facilities including the children's play park and the
main football pitch will be inevitable to allow the construction team
access. Noise and dust created by building work will make them
unusable. Play park is the only one on the estate with facilities for
younger children. Would need to use another suitable site further away,
reducing access to outside play;
Recent developments elsewhere have put pressure on the roads and
highlighted lack of facilities and infrastructure;
Told by developers that they were committed to develop a youth sports
pitch/recreation area. This is an opportunistic application reneging on
the “sales pitch” commitments;
Site is small and will result in the houses being densely packed onto
one area. Small plot sizes will mean less parking spaces and more
vehicles parked on the main road;
The residents want to use this land but due to incompetence from both
the developer and the council this is being denied;

Page 15

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022
























Aware that DWH do not want to remain on site and so would have to
subcontract the work to yet another builder;
The green space/sports area within close proximity of our property was
one which helped us decide to purchase;
Disappointing that David Wilson Homes have been misleading their
purchasers for their own financial gain and giving false promises;
This planning application provides no positive benefit to the community,
apart from offering 6 affordable homes;
Due to the pandemic, more open spaces are vital to ensure that people
can exercise, something that cannot always be done in the home with
gardens being too small for adequate exercise;
'Infilling' of green space sets a dangerous precedent and undermines
the environment the residents experienced when they originally bought
houses;
Has been lovely to see families using this little green haven especially
during "lockdown";
Have had building in the village for 8 years and its time for it to stop.
Picket Piece must have given more than its quota of new builds to meet
Government needs;
Layout and density of building;
Not enough green space on the estate where you can actually exercise
your dogs for children to play and exert some energy. Will push the
children as they grow older to hang around on street corners thus
become nuisances;
Could you explain why you should be given the opportunity to renege on
your responsibilities of the upkeep of green areas. Feel that you are not
now maintaining this so that it is making it difficult for people to use this
green space easily whilst walking;
Inadequate pathways in to town to support a further increase in housing.
Andover as a town is not thriving enough and anyone moving in to the
area would leave the area for shops and entertainment;
Site has been built up with soil left from previous phases of construction,
hundreds of lorries will be required to remove this soil as part of the
early works of the site;
Government and Test Valley seek to promote health and wellbeing in
families, allowing this development would be a betrayal of those
promotions and a total u-turn on the strategies undertaken;
Site would be a social space for the community and families, used not
only as a sporting area, utilised by the Picket Piece Sports and Social
Club, but also the Picket Piece Residents Association in holding public
events and social gatherings;
Site is important for people with disabilities to access, there are ramps
that lead from the lower part past the play park and a nice flat area in
which they are able to access to sit in the sun or move around;
Development clearly contradicts national framework for planning;
Best alternative to site access would be from Ox Drove;
Whole area should be enclosed with solid panels to reduce noise, dust
and debris, protect the surroundings and provide safety for residents;

Page 16

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022






































Perhaps they would consider placing the new homes further away from
the residents and slide the development towards Ox Drove in order the
provide a grass barrier between us and the build;
This is ethically wrong, DWH are misleading the community for their
own financial gain;
Development already failing to meet the sustainability criteria of national
planning due to lack of school;
Development may encourage antisocial behaviour;
No provisions made for street lights;
Construction would go against existing character of development, out of
character with the village as a whole;
Loss of light or overshadowing.
Overlooking/loss of privacy
Adequacy of parking/loading/turning (kerb on corner of Galbraith Road
was been damaged by the Refuse Collection vehicle).
Traffic generation
Layout and density of building
Loss of trees
Road access, the bin men struggle and have to reverse backwards
down Galbraith Road;
Previous planning decisions (including appeal decisions)
Nature conservation
Noise and disturbance resulting from use
Hazardous materials
Smells
Highway safety
Visual amenity (but not loss of private view)
Effect on listed building and conservation area
Design, appearance and materials
Landscaping
Local, strategic, regional and national planning policies
Government circulars, orders and statutory instruments
Disabled persons' access
Compensation and awards of costs against the Council at public
enquiries
Proposals in the Development Plan
The perceived loss of property value
Private disputes between neighbours
The loss of a view
The impact of construction work or competition between firms
Restrictive covenants
Ownerships disputes over rights of way
Fence lines etc
Personal morals or views about the applicant.

Page 17

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

6.3

1 x letter; Comments from Hampshire Swifts, summarised as follows;
 Request that planning consent includes a requirement for multiple
internal nest sites for Swifts;
 Integration of Swifts bricks is very easy to include into routine building
practices and results in a permanent, discreet, low cost, maintenancefree biodiversity enhancer which will provide much needed breeding
spaces for declining species of birds.

7.0 POLICY
7.1 Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)
COM1 - Housing Provision 2011 – 2029
COM2 - Settlement Hierarchy
COM6 – New Neighbourhood at Picket Piece, Andover
COM15 - Infrastructure
E1 - High Quality Development in the Borough
E2 - Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough
E5 - Biodiversity
E7 - Water Management
E8 - Pollution
E9 - Heritage
LHW1 – Public Open Space
LHW4 - Amenity
T1 – Managing Movement
T2 – Parking Standards
7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Affordable Housing
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
8.1 The main planning considerations are:









The principle of development
Character and appearance
Highway network
Water management
Biodiversity
Archaeology
Amenity and pollution
Obligations

Page 18

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

8.2

The principle of development
The site lies within the settlement boundary for Andover, as defined by the
RLP inset maps. Policy COM2 of the RLP allows in principle for development
and redevelopment within settlement boundaries, provided that it is appropriate
to other policies of the RLP.

8.3

Policy COM6 of the RLP permits a new neighbourhood at Picket Piece,
comprising approximately 400 dwellings and a range of associated facilities,
subject to the provision of:
a) Affordable housing provision in accordance with policy COM7;
b) Improvements to community and education facilities;
c) Public open space provision in accordance with policy LHW1;
d) Landscaping to be provided including
i) A landscape belt of approximately 5 metres width south of the
railway line
ii) A landscape belt to complement that already permitted north of Ox
Drove
e) Access to the development via;
i) Vehicular access to Walworth Rd
ii) Pedestrian/ cycle links to Walworth Rd
f) Off-site improvements to the transport network to manage the impact of
additional movements including:
i) Junctions of the A3093/A3057/A303(T)
ii) Pedestrian/ cycle links along Ox Drove.

8.4

The proposal would provide the requirements set out by RLP policy COM6.
The principle of the proposed development would therefore be acceptable,
subject to meeting the requirements of the other relevant policies of the RLP,
as discussed in more detail below.

8.5

Loss of public open space
Outline planning permission was granted at Appeal on 30 June 2011 for a
mixed use development comprising up to 530 dwellings, local centre offering
community facilities and retail units, public open space, vehicular, pedestrian
and cycle access and landscaping (application reference 10/00242/OUTN).
This development is now known as Locksbridge Park, and is nearing
completion. A section 106 legal agreement was completed on 3 May 2011 in
respect of that application, which bound the developer to certain obligations in
relation to the proposals.

8.6

Clauses 48-50 of the section 106 legal agreement associated with the outline
planning permission (10/00242/OUTN), required the developer:
48. Not to implement the Permission within Phase 1b until a plan
showing the precise location of the Junior Sports Pitch Land has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council.
49. To reserve the Junior Sports Pitch Land for the purpose of a junior
sports pitch and not to carry out any development thereon save
49.1 for the purposes of a junior sports pitch
49.2 for the provision and installation of Services
49.3 as otherwise agreed in writing by the Borough Council

Page 19

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

50. To secure the Junior Sports Pitch Land and to keep it in a clean and
tidy condition to the satisfaction of the Borough Council.
8.7

The precise location of the junior sports pitch was shown on plans submitted
as part of reserved matters application 15/01377/RESN (see paragraph 4.3 of
this report), which included the parcel of land labelled as “Phase 1b” on the
phasing plan within the section 106 legal agreement associated with
application 10/00242/OUTN. This land is now the subject of this application for
the provision of 16 dwellings and associated works.

8.8

The application site has been levelled and laid to grass, and third party
representations indicate that the land is being used by local residents as
informal public open space.

8.9

In accordance with Section 106A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(TCPA), a person against whom a planning obligation is enforceable may, at
any time after the expiry of the relevant period, apply to the appropriate
authority for the obligation to have effect subject to such modifications as may
be specified in the application, or to be discharged. An application was
submitted by the landowner of the site to discharge the obligations in relation
to the provision of a junior sports pitch on the current application site (see
paragraph 4.2 of this report). The LPA refused the application, citing that the
obligation continued to serve a useful purpose. However, the landowner
appealed against that decision, and the Planning Inspectorate allowed the
appeal, and discharged the obligation. A copy of the Appeal Decision is
appended to this report. As a result of this, it is no longer possible for the
application site to be secured as public open space. Whilst is may be used as
such, the land cannot be classed as public open space for the purposes of
RLP policy LHW1. It is therefore also considered that the Sport England
objection to the proposals cannot be upheld.

8.10

Character and appearance
Policies E1 and E2 of the RLP seek to protect the landscape of the Borough
through the provision of high quality development that integrates with and
respects/complements the character of the area, and that does not have a
detrimental impact on the appearance of the immediate area or landscape
character.

8.11

The site currently has a spacious and open character, by virtue of it having
been originally reserved for the purposes of a junior sports pitch, and the
vegetation on its boundaries contribute to and reflect the verdant character
found in the areas of Locksbridge Park that sit adjacent to Ox Drove. This
vegetation would largely be removed under this proposal, particularly along the
north and west boundaries.

8.12

The site has been levelled as a result of having been reserved for the
purposes of a junior sports pitch, and in places it is elevated from the adjacent
roads that would serve the proposed development. The submitted plans
indicate that the site would be re-levelled so as to reflect the existing sloping
nature of Tolme Way, to the south west of the site.

Page 20

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

8.13

A requirement of RLP policy COM6 is that a landscape belt to complement that
already permitted north of Ox Drove should be included with any development
within the allocated new neighbourhood at Picket Piece. This is proposed to
be provided, with the retention of a substantial green buffer between the
proposed dwellings and Ox Drove.

8.14

The proposals would include soft frontages to Tolme Way and Galbraith Road,
as well as the provision of additional tree planting along the boundaries with
Ox Drove and the adjacent existing retained sports pitch. Existing trees and
vegetation along these latter two boundaries would also be retained. A
condition is recommended to require the submission of a detailed landscaping
scheme, as well as details of the proposed method of protecting the existing
trees and vegetation during construction.

8.15

The proposed development, in terms of the scale, form, layout, density and
appearance of the dwellings, and the associated parking arrangements and
landscaping, would be in keeping with the existing surrounding development
within Locksbridge Park, and it would be seen in conjunction with this existing
residential development. Whilst the NPPF and the National Design
Guide/National Model Design Code encourage a better quality of development,
it is difficult to ignore the strong context in which the proposed development
would sit. Therefore whilst in a different context, the proposed development
might be considered inappropriate, it is not considered reasonable to refuse
the development as proposed, given the particular visual context of this site.

8.16

It is considered that the proposed development would comply with RLP
policies E1 and E2.

8.17

Highway network
Policy T1 of the RLP seeks to ensure that proposed developments are
connected with existing and proposed pedestrian, cycle and public transport
links to key destinations and networks, and that its impact on users of the
networks is minimised. The development, in terms of layout and access,
should also be safe, attractive, functional and accessible to all, and should not
impact adversely on the function, safety or character of and accessibility to the
highway network. Provision should also be made to support and promote the
use of sustainable transport.

8.18

The submitted trip rate data and resultant trip rates utilised to determine traffic
generation is considered acceptable and fully representative. The level of
additional traffic generated from the proposed development is not considered
to be material. The proposed development would also be accessed via the
existing road network within Locksbridge Park, which is accessed from
Walworth Road, and this is considered to be capable of supporting the
proposed development. As a result of this, there is considered to be no
requirement for additional highway improvement works to mitigate this
proposal. It is noted that contributions have been secured through other
planning permissions within Picket Piece to fund highway improvement works
on Walworth Road, Ox Drove and the B3400, to improve pedestrian access to
the town centre and facilities at Picket Twenty.

Page 21

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

8.19

Vehicle tracking for an 11.2m refuse vehicle has been provided, which
demonstrates that a refuse vehicle can make the necessary manoeuvres in a
safe and efficient manner in order to make refuse collections from the existing
and proposed dwellings.

8.20

Each of the proposed dwellings would be provided with an on-site car parking
provision that accords with the Council’s adopted standards as set out in
Annex G of the RLP. This includes the provision of visitor car parking spaces.
The proposed car parking layout is considered to be acceptable and falls in
line with the wider development at Locksbridge Park. Each dwelling would also
be provided with cycle storage provision.

8.21

Overall the proposed development is considered to comply with RLP policies
T1 and T2.

8.22

Water management
Policy E7 of the RLP seeks to ensure that development is acceptable in
respect of flood risk (including from surface water), and water consumption.

8.23

Surface water drainage
The application is supported by a drainage statement, which sets out details of
the proposed surface water drainage strategy, which includes infiltration
features within the on-site public open space. The site is not defined as an
area at risk of flooding (flood zone 1), and it is considered that subject to
further specific details being submitted (as requested by the Lead Local Flood
Authority), such means of surface water disposal would be acceptable, and
would not give rise to additional flood risk elsewhere, or leave the development
itself at risk of flooding. Subject to a condition requiring further information, the
proposal is considered to comply with RLP policy E7 in this respect.

8.24

Foul drainage and water supply/consumption
Southern Water has confirmed that they are able to provide a water supply to
the site, as well as foul sewage disposal. Conditions and informative notes are
recommended in respect of these matters, as requested by Southern Water.
Policy E7 of the RLP also requires new homes to achieve a water consumption
standard of no more than 110 litres per person per day in order to secure
increased water efficiency. A condition to this effect is therefore also
recommended.

8.25

Biodiversity
Policy E5 (Biodiversity) of the RLP requires development to conserve, and
where possible restore and/or enhance biodiversity.

8.26

The application is supported by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal report,
which identifies varying levels of suitability of the site for foraging and
commuting bats, badger, hazel dormouse and birds. The application is also
supported by an Ecological Compensation and Enhancement Strategy report.
This document sets out clear details of all ecological compensation and
enhancement measures proposed, in order to result in habitat creation and a
net gain in biodiversity at the site, which are considered to be acceptable.

Page 22

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

A condition is recommended to secure this strategy. An additional technical
note has also been submitted, which provides sufficient justification as to why
bat surveys were not undertaken at the site. The Ecologist has raised no
objections to the proposals, and they are considered to comply with RLP policy
E5. It is noted that a third party representation has been received requesting
the provision of swift nesting opportunities, and discussions are taking place
with the applicant regarding this. The outcome of this will be reported in an
update paper.
8.27

Nitrate neutrality
The water environment within the Solent region is one of the most important for
wildlife in the United Kingdom. The Solent water environment is internationally
important for its wildlife and is protected under the Water Environment
Regulations and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations, as
well as national protection for many parts of the coastline and the sea.

8.28

In an Advice Note received by the Local Planning Authority in June 2020 from
Natural England it was advised there are high levels of nitrogen and
phosphorus input into this water environment with sound evidence that these
nutrients are causing eutrophication at these designated sites. These nutrient
inputs are currently caused mostly by wastewater from existing housing and
agricultural sources. The resulting dense mats of green algae are impacting
on the Solent’s protected habitats and bird species.

8.29

There is uncertainty as to whether new growth will further deteriorate
designated sites. This issue has been subject to detailed work commissioned
by local planning authorities in conjunction with Natural England, Environment
Agency and water companies. Until this work is complete, the uncertainty
remains and the potential for future housing development across the Solent
region to exacerbate these impacts create a risk to their potential future
conservation status.

8.30

As such, it is Natural England’s view that there is a likely significant effect on
the internationally designated sites in the Solent due to the increase in waste
water from new development providing overnight accommodation. Natural
England has advised that one way to address this issue is for new
developments to achieve nutrient neutrality to ensure that new development
does not add to existing nutrient burdens and that the scheme can be
delivered in line with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017 (as amended).

8.31

The application is supported by a proposed nitrate mitigation strategy, which
comprises the removal of agricultural land (arable) off site, on land measuring
2.02ha at Tidgrove Estate, near Overton, from future agricultural production
and the planting of a new woodland on this land. Evidence has been
submitted by the applicant that appears to confirm that the land has been in
arable production for the preceding 10 years. It is therefore accepted on a
precautionary basis that cereal production represents an accurate
classification of the mitigation land. This mitigation land is located outside Test
Valley borough, within Basingstoke and Deane borough. Discussions have
taken place with Officers at Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council (BDBC),

Page 23

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

and their Development Control Committee has given approval to allow TVBC
and BDBC to enter into a legal agreement in respect of this matter, and to
delegate enforcement functions for the nitrate mitigation land to TVBC. To
secure the future use of the land in perpetuity a legal agreement would be
implemented preventing the use of the land for agricultural production.
Through securing the implementation of this mitigation, the proposed
development would not result in adverse effects on the Solent designated site
through water quality impacts arising from nitrate generation. Details have
been submitted of the proposed planting and maintenance of the mitigation
land, which the Tree and Landscape Officers at Basingstoke and Deane
Borough Council have reviewed and raised no objections to. The details of the
proposed planting and maintenance of the mitigation land would be secured in
the legal agreement accompanying the recommended grant of planning
permission.
8.32

The LPA carried out an Appropriate Assessment based on the information
submitted by the applicant, and consulted Natural England on this. Natural
England has requested additional information, to include an updated nutrient
budget calculation to account for the existing land use of the proposed
mitigation land. The applicant is aware of this, and is preparing the information
requested. Therefore, subject to the submission of additional information, the
completion of an Appropriate Assessment and further consultation with Natural
England, and the completion of a legal agreement, it is considered that the
proposal would not result in a likely significant effect on the internationally
designated nature conservation sites in the Solent, in accordance with the
requirements of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations, and
Policy E5 of the RLP.

8.33

Archaeology
Policy E9 (Heritage) of the RLP sets out that the merits of a development
affecting an undesignated heritage asset (such as non-scheduled
archaeological remains) will be balanced against the scale of the harm or loss,
either directly or indirectly, to the significance of that heritage asset. The site
has been subject to archaeological evaluations in 2015 which did not find any
substantive archaeological evidence. The proposals would therefore comply
with RLP policy E9.

8.34

Third parties have referred to impacts on listed buildings and conservation
areas. There are no such designated heritage assets within the vicinity of the
site, and therefore it is not considered that any such impacts would arise.

8.35

Amenity and pollution
Policy LHW4 of the RLP sets out that development will be permitted provided
that; it provides for the privacy and amenity of its occupants and those of
neighbouring properties; in the case of residential developments it provides for
private open space in the form of gardens or communal open space which are
appropriate for the needs of residents; and it does not reduce the levels of
daylight and sunlight reaching new and existing properties or private open
space to below acceptable levels. Policy E8 of the RLP sets out that
development will be permitted provided that it does not result in pollution which

Page 24

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

would cause unacceptable risks to human health, the natural environment or
general amenity, and that development that would or could potentially generate
pollution will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that there would not
be any adverse impact on human health, the natural environment or general
amenity. For the purposes of this policy, pollution includes noise and vibration,
light and air.
8.36

Amenity
Within the application site itself, it is considered that the proposed dwellings
would be sufficiently separated from/related to each other and their associated
private outdoor amenity areas, so as to afford each dwelling with an
acceptable level of amenity in terms of privacy, daylight and sunlight. It is also
considered that the proposed private outdoor amenity areas would be
appropriate for the needs of the residents. The relationships and separation
distances between the proposed dwellings and the existing surrounding
dwellings would be in keeping with those found throughout the Locksbridge
Park development, and would be such that the proposed development would
not impact adversely on their residential amenity in terms of a loss of privacy,
daylight or sunlight. It is considered that the proposed development would
comply with RLP policy LHW4.

8.37

Pollution
The proposed dwellings would be located within close proximity of the existing
sports pitch to the north east. Such uses can create some impacts from noise,
but the relationship does not appear substantially different from that envisaged
in the original scheme, i.e. the relationship between existing dwellings and the
formerly required junior sports pitch. A condition of the original planning
permission for the Locksbridge Park development (see paragraph 4.4 of this
report) restricts the use of floodlighting on the existing retained pitch. Any
future proposals for floodlighting would need to consider any impacts on
amenity. Conditions are recommended to address the potential risks posed by
historical contamination (if any) at the site, and to mitigate the impacts from the
development/construction phase, including from traffic, noise and dust.
Subject to conditions, the proposal is considered to comply with RLP policy E8.

8.38

Obligations
Policy COM6 of the RLP requires development within the allocated new
neighbourhood at Picket Piece to provide; affordable housing; improvements to
community and education facilities; public open space; and off-site
improvements to the transport network. RLP policy COM15 also sets out that
development will be permitted provided that the appropriate investment has
been secured either in the form of works and/or financial contributions to
mitigate the impact on existing infrastructure (including schools). RLP policy
LHW1 sets out that new housing development where there is a net increase in
population will be permitted subject to either suitable on-site public open space
being provided or off-site provision in the form of an alternative site or financial
contribution. RLP policy T1 requires development to minimise its impact on the
highway network (refer to paragraph 8.18 of this report). Policy COM7 of the
RLP sets out that on proposed housing sites consisting of a net gain of 15 or
more dwellings, the Council will negotiate for up to 40% of dwellings to be
affordable.

Page 25

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

8.39

As of the 1st August 2016, the Council implemented the Community
Infrastructure Levy, which raises funds for providing new infrastructure by
levying a charge on new development. Development within the allocated new
neighbourhood at Picket Piece (as defined by policy COM6 and map E of the
RLP) is nil rated for CIL, on the basis that more site specific infrastructure is
likely to be necessary to make the development acceptable, and that this
would not represent general infrastructure, as identified on the CIL Regulation
123 List, that would otherwise be provided by other CIL liable development
within the Borough. Any obligations sought should accord with the CIL
Regulations 2019 in being; necessary to make the development acceptable in
planning terms; directly related to the development; and fairly and reasonably
related in scale and kind to the development.

8.40

Affordable housing
In accordance with RLP policy COM7, the proposal includes 6 affordable
dwellings, and a financial contribution would be required equivalent to 0.4 of a
unit. The proposed affordable housing mix and types of dwellings would meet
the needs of the borough, and the Council’s Housing Officer has raised no
objections to the proposals in this respect.

8.41

Public open space
In accordance with the requirements of policies COM6 and LHW1 of the RLP,
the proposed development is required to the provide the following types of
public open space; Outdoor Sports Facilities; Parks and Public Gardens;
Informal Recreation Areas; Provision for Children and Teenagers; and
Allotments.

8.42

The supporting text to RLP policy LHW1 indicates that the Council will seek
open space provision, or contributions towards open space provision, from
new housing developments. It is set out that if open space is not being
provided on site, it should be provided off site, either by the supply of an
alternative site or a financial contribution, in order to mitigate the impact of the
proposed development.

8.43

An area for Informal Recreation would be provided on the site, which is
considered to be acceptable. With regards to Provision for Children and
Teenagers, Outdoor Sports Facilities and Allotments, mitigation can be
provided through a financial contribution towards the
enhancement/improvement/extension of existing facilities within Picket Piece,
and the existing outdoors sports provision at Picket Twenty. These site
specific mitigation projects would not be funded through CIL. With regards to
Parks and Public Gardens, there is currently a surplus of this type of public
open space in Picket Piece, and therefore no mitigation is required from this
proposed development in respect of this.

8.44

There would also be a potential conflict between the existing retained sports
pitch to the north east of the site and the proposed dwellings, in that it is likely
balls would travel over the boundary into the housing or on to the road. For this
reason, it is considered that ball-stop fencing should be provided along the

Page 26

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

south-west boundary of the sports pitch, which is consistent with the approach
along its north east boundary. A financial contribution should therefore be
secured to provide this, in order to ensure that the proposed development does
not hinder the long term use of the sports pitch.
8.45

Third parties have raised concerns about the temporary loss of the existing
children's play park and pitch during the construction works, with the noise and
dust created by building work making them unusable. There is no indication
within the application that these facilities would be inaccessible during the
construction of the proposed development. A condition is recommended to
require a construction management plan to be submitted for approval, which
would include measures to prevent issues arising from noise and dust.

8.46

Community provision
The proposed development would increase the demand on the existing Picket
Piece Village Hall, and a financial contribution should therefore be secured to
fund improvements to this community facility as mitigation for this.
Improvements are currently being planned by the Sports and Social
Club/Village Hall Management Committee.

8.47

Conclusion on obligations
The obligations required in respect of mitigating the impacts of this proposed
development, as discussed above, are considered to accord with the CIL
Regulations 2019. It is proposed that a legal agreement would be completed
to secure either on site provision or financial contributions towards off site
provision of affordable housing, public open space and community facilities,
and their retention in perpetuity and long term maintenance, where relevant.
The proposed development would therefore mitigate against the increase in
demand on existing affordable housing provision, infrastructure and community
facilities within and serving Picket Piece, and subject to the completion of a
legal agreement, would be in accordance with RLP policies COM6, COM7,
COM15 and LHW1 of the RLP.

8.48

Other matters
The following matters raised by third parties are not material planning
considerations;
 The perceived loss of property value;
 Private disputes between neighbours;
 The loss of a view;
 The impact of construction work or competition between firms;
 Restrictive covenants;
 Ownerships disputes over rights of way;
 Fence lines etc;
 Personal morals or views about the applicant.

8.49

All applications are considered on their own merits, and it is not considered
that granting planning permission in this instance would set any precedents
elsewhere.

Page 27

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

8.50

Third party comments have queried why the Council is no longer maintaining
the application site. As the application site is within private ownership, and
does not form part of the formal public open space provision at Locksbridge
Park, it is not the Council’s responsibility to maintain it.

9.0
9.1

CONCLUSION
Subject to conditions, the submission of additional information in respect of
demonstrating nutrient neutrality, and the completion of a S106 legal
agreement, the proposed development is considered to comply with the
relevant policies of the RLP.

9.2

In accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Pre-commencement
Conditions) Regulations 2018, notice will be given to the applicant of the Local
Planning Authority’s intention to impose pre-commencement conditions in the
form of conditions 3 - 8 below in advance of the Committee meeting, and any
amendments to these conditions will be reported in an update paper.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION
Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building to grant PERMISSION
subject to; the submission of (i) An acceptable nitrate mitigation scheme;
(ii) The undertaking of an Appropriate Assessment; (iii) The satisfactory
conclusion of consultation with Natural England; (iv) The completion of a
legal agreement to secure the nitrate mitigation measures; and subject to
the completion of a legal agreement to secure obligations in respect of
the following:
 Affordable housing;
 Public open space (on site and off site);
 Ball stop fencing;
 Community facility improvements;
and subject to:
1.
The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
2.
The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted
plans, numbers;
 P10-010 REV C
 A-P13-010
 H433---7 13 Rev B
 H433---7 14 Rev B
 A-P11-131
 A-P11-130
 H406---7 15
 H469--X7 16
 H497---7 13
 P341--D7 13
 T310-D-7 15 Rev 01

Page 28

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

3.

4.

5.

 T310-E-7 15 Rev 01
 SH55---7 11 Rev A
 H406---7 16
 H469--X7 17 Rev A
 H497---7 14
 P341--D7 14
 T310-D-7 16 Rev 01
 T310-E-7 16 Rev 01
 HPPJP/LP/01 A
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.
No development shall take place (including site clearance and any
other preparatory works) until a scheme for the protection of trees
and vegetation to be retained has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall
include a plan showing the location and specification of tree
protective barriers. Such barriers shall be erected prior to any
other site operations and at least three working days notice shall
be given to the Local Planning Authority that it has been erected.
Note: The protective barriers shall be as specified at Chapter 6.2
and detailed in figure 2 of B.S.5837:2012 unless otherwise agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of
development to ensure the enhancement of the development by the
retention of existing trees and natural features during the
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough
Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E2.
No development shall take place (including site clearance and any
other preparatory works) until a method of demolition and
construction has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme should include suitable dust
control measures and details of how noise impacts from any
temporary plant, such as generators, will be minimised so as to
protect residential amenity. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of
development in the interests of amenity in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.
No development shall take place (other than any approved
demolition and site clearance works) until an assessment of the
nature and extent of any contamination and a scheme for
remediating the contamination has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
assessment must be undertaken by a competent person, and shall
assess the presence of any contamination on the site, whether or
not it originates on the site. The assessment shall comprise at least
a desk study and qualitative risk assessment and, where
appropriate, the assessment shall be extended following further
site investigation work. In the event that contamination is found, or
is considered likely, the scheme shall contain remediation

Page 29

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

6.

proposals designed to bring the site to a condition suitable for the
intended use. Such remediation proposals shall include clear
remediation objectives and criteria, an appraisal of the remediation
options, and the arrangements for the supervision of remediation
works by a competent person. The site shall not be brought in to
use until a verification report, for the purpose of certifying
adherence to the approved remediation scheme, has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of
development To ensure a safe living/working environment in
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016
policy E8.
Notwithstanding the information submitted, no development shall
take place until details of the proposed surface water drainage and
means of disposal, based on the principles contained within the
submitted Drainage Statement, have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted
details shall include the following:
 A technical summary highlighting any changes to the design
from that within the approved Flood Risk Assessment;
 Infiltration test results undertaken in accordance with
BRE365 and providing a representative assessment of those
locations where infiltration features are proposed;
 Updated detailed drainage plans to include type, layout and
dimensions of drainage features including references to link
to the drainage calculations;
 Updated detailed drainage calculations to demonstrate
existing runoff rates are not exceeded and there is sufficient
attenuation for storm events up to and including 1:100 +
climate change;
 Evidence that urban creep has been included within the
calculations.
The drainage details shall also specify the responsibilities of each
party for the implementation of the SUDS scheme, and a timetable
for implementation. A management and maintenance plan for the
lifetime of the development shall also be provided, which should
include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or
statutory undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the
operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details, and no dwelling shall be occupied until all drainage works
have been carried out in accordance with such details.
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of
development to ensure the prevention of an increased risk of
flooding and to ensure the improvement and protection of water
quality, habitat and amenity in accordance with policy E7 of the
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.

Page 30

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

No development shall take place until full details of the layout for
the parking and manoeuvring onsite of contractor's and delivery
vehicles during the construction period have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the
commencement of development and retained for the duration of the
construction period.
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of the
development to ensure that construction of the proposed
development will be in the interest of highway safety in accordance
with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.
No development shall take place until details of the proposed
means of foul sewerage disposal have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details, and
none of the dwellings shall be occupied until the works for the
disposal of sewage have been provided to serve each dwelling.
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of
development to make adequate provision for sewage infrastructure
having regard to policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised
Local Plan 2016.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the submitted Ecological Compensation and
Enhancement Strategy report (prepared by ECOSA, dated February
2020). Photographic evidence of the implemented measures shall
be submitted for approval to the Local Planning Authority prior to
occupation.
Reason: To enhance biodiversity in accordance with Test Valley
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E5.
No piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative
methods shall be carried out until full details, including method
statements, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with policy E8 of
the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.
Notwithstanding the information submitted, no development shall
take place above DPC level of any dwelling hereby permitted until
samples and details of the materials to be used in the construction
of all external surfaces of that dwelling hereby permitted have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: To ensure the development has a satisfactory external
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1.

Page 31

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding the details submitted no development shall take
place above DPC level of the development hereby permitted until
full details of hard and soft landscape works have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details
shall include: proposed finished levels or contours; means of
enclosure; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and structures
(e.g. furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs,
lighting, etc.); proposed and existing functional services above and
below ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications cables,
pipelines etc. indicating lines, manholes, supports.). Soft
landscape works shall include: planting plans; written
specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of
plants, noting species, plant sizes, and proposed
numbers/densities. The landscape works shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2.
A landscape management plan, including long-term design
objectives and arrangements for its implementation, including
management responsibilities and maintenance schedules (for a
minimum ten year period), for all landscape areas other than
privately owned, domestic gardens, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
first occupation of the development hereby permitted. The
landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved.
Reason: To ensure appropriate maintenance of all non-domestic
landscaped areas in the development having regard to policy E2 of
the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.
No dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied until vehicular
access to the public highway to serve each dwelling has been
provided in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory and safe means of access to the
highway in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local
Plan (2016) Policy T1.
No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until its associated
provision for car parking, including garages where relevant, and
manoeuvring has been made in accordance with the approved
plans. The car parking and manoeuvring provision shall thereafter
be maintained for such purposes at all times.
Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with the
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policies T1 and T2.
No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until its associated
provision for cycle parking/storage has been made in accordance
with the approved plans. The cycle parking/storage shall be
maintained for this purpose at all times.

Page 32

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Reason: In the interest of providing sufficient safe parking for
cyclists in accordance with the Test Valley Borough Revised Local
Plan (2016) Policies T1 and T2.
The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day water
efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015.
Reason: In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised
Local Plan 2016.
No work relating to the construction of the development hereby
approved, including deliveries, collections or works of demolition
or preparation prior to operations, shall take place before the hours
of 07.30 nor after 18.00 on Mondays to Fridays; before the hours of
08.00 nor after 13.00 on Saturdays; and at all on Sundays and
Public Holidays, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.
No deliveries of materials or removal of spoil during the
construction of the development shall take place before 0730 or
after 1800 hours on Mondays to Fridays, or before 0800 or after
1300 hours on Saturdays. There shall be no deliveries of materials
or removal of spoil during the construction of the development on
Sundays and public holidays.
Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.
There shall be no burning on site during site clearance and
construction.
Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.
In the event that contamination (that was not previously identified)
is found at any time during construction works, the presence of
such contamination shall be reported in writing to the Local
Planning Authority without delay and development shall be
suspended on the affected part of the site until a remediation
scheme for dealing with that contamination has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved remediation scheme shall be implemented and, if
requested, a verification report, for the purpose of certifying
adherence to the approved remediation scheme, shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority prior to the site being brought in to
use.
Reason: To ensure a safe living/working environment in
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016
policy E8.

Page 33

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Notes to applicant:
1.
In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has
had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting
solutions.
2.
Attention is drawn to the requirements of the two Agreements
dated XXXXXX under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 which affects this development.
3.
A formal application for connection to the public sewerage system
and the water supply is required in order to service this
development. Please contact Southern Water, Sparrowgrove
House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire, SO21 2SW (Tel:
0330 303 0119 or www.southernwater.co.uk). Please read the New
Connections Services Charging Arrangements documents which
has now been published and is available to read via the following
link https://beta.southernwater.co.uk/infrastructure-charges.

Page 34

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Appeal Decision
Hearing Held on 18 September 2019
Site visit made on 18 September 2019
by Mr J P Sargent BA(Hons) MA MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 18 October 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/C1760/Q/18/3216236
Land at Picket Piece, Ox Drove, Picket Piece, Hampshire
•
•
•
•
•
•

The appeal is made under Section 106B of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to modify a planning obligation.
The appeal is made by Wates Developments Limited & David Wilson Homes Southern
against the decision of Test Valley Borough Council.
The development to which the planning obligation relates is a mixed use development
comprising up to 530 dwellings, a local centre offering community facilities and retail
units, public open space, access and landscaping.
The planning obligation, dated 3 May 2011, was made between Test Valley Borough
Council and Wates Developments Limited and others
The application Ref 18/01891/OBLN was refused by notice dated 12 September 2018.
The application sought to have the planning obligation modified by deleting paragraphs
48, 49 & 50 in Schedule 1 Part 2 (the disputed paragraphs) concerning the reserving of
land for a Junior Sports Pitch.

Decision
1.

The appeal is allowed. The planning obligation, dated 3 May 2011, made between
Test Valley Borough Council and Wates Developments Limited and others shall
have effect subject to the following modifications:
a)

Operative Provisions; Section 2 Interpretation – Delete the definition of
‘Junior Sports Pitch Land’ in its entirety.

b)

Schedule 1 Part 2 – Delete paragraphs 48, 49 & 50 in their entirety.

Application for costs
2. At the Hearing an application for costs was made by the Council against Wates
Developments Limited & David Wilson Homes Southern. That application is the
subject of a separate decision.
Main Issue
3. The main issue in this case is whether, with the disputed paragraphs, the
planning obligation continues to serve a useful purpose.
Reasons
4. In 2011 planning permission was granted for a mixed-use development
comprising up to 530 dwellings with various associated facilities (the 2011
permission). This was subject to the planning obligation at the heart of this
appeal. In the accompanying submissions the 2011 permission was described
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 35

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Appeal Decision APP/C1760/Q/18/3216236

as ‘Phase 1’. Subsequent development (which I shall call ‘Phase 2’) was
intended to provide a further 270 dwellings and was to lie outside the
application site of the 2011 permission to the north.
5. The planning obligation addressed many aspects, one of which was the
provision of recreation. To this end it laid down the requirements to provide
various recreation areas and facilities. For each of these conditions for its
transfer and future maintenance were stated, and a threshold or thresholds
were given when, during the evolution of the development, a commuted sum
had to be paid to the Council or it otherwise had to be transferred to and
maintained by the Council.
6. Although also included in the planning obligation, the Junior Sports Pitch was
handled in a different way to these other facilities. The disputed paragraphs
broadly required the pitch’s location (which I shall term the appeal site) to be
agreed, the land to be reserved for that purpose and the land then to be kept
in a clean and tidy condition. However, there was no requirement for it to be
made publicly accessible or available for public use, and the obligation does not
say for how long the land must be reserved. It also did not state that the land
had to be handed to the Council, and it gave no mechanism for such a transfer.
7. The Officer Report for the 2011 permission appeared to confirm the Junior
Sports Pitch was not needed for that development as it said
‘Space within the site for a junior sports pitch, which would form part of a
subsequent phasing application, is to be retained…’ (my emphasis).
As a consequence, the 2011 permission resulted in an over-supply of recreation
land in the development to which it related, with the amount of over-supply
roughly equating to the size of the appeal site. Indeed, it was accepted at the
Hearing that had the 270 houses not come forward in ‘Phase 2’ then there
would be no need for the Junior Sports Pitch.
8. Permissions have now been granted for housing in all of the area identified as
‘Phase 2’. In particular there have been 3 applications for schemes granted or
permitted outside the site of the 2011 permission, plus a further permission for
housing on an intended school site, and on-site recreation provision has not
been sought on any of these schemes due to the presence of the Junior Sports
Pitch. However, none of those decisions were subject to an obligation requiring
the provision of that facility.
9. The appeal site has been levelled and grassed, and to date there has been
compliance with all the disputed paragraphs. The site is next to the larger
sports pitch, pavilion, tennis court and play area that had to be provided under
the planning obligation. I understand these are in the process of being handed
over to the Council and being made available for community use.
10. The appellants questioned whether a Junior Sports Pitch could in fact be fitted
onto the appeal site. The obligation gave no definition as to the size of this
pitch or the specific sports it should serve. Taking football as an example
though, the Football Association does not describe any of its stated pitch
dimensions as suitable for ‘juniors’. However, it identifies a pitch size for
children under the age of 8 that is small enough to be accommodated on the
appeal site, and I consider such a pitch can be reasonably defined as a Junior

2

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 36

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Appeal Decision APP/C1760/Q/18/3216236

Sports Pitch. As such, the requirements of the planning obligation can be
fulfilled in this regard.
11. Although the Act says that in assessing this appeal, I am to consider whether
the obligation ‘continues to serve a useful purpose’, it does not define what this
means. While the meaning of the words taken at face value is noted, the
parties accepted that regard must also be given to the 3 tests that relate to the
provision of planning obligations found in the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (the Regulations). Indeed, as the Regulations say the
obligation may only constitute a reason for the grant of planning permission if
it complies with these 3 specific tests, it seems reasonable to assume that,
once an obligation is signed and permission granted, the useful purposes it
serves cannot then be broadened beyond those tests.
12. The Council confirmed that any consideration of a useful purpose served by the
obligation should be confined to needs arising from those placed upon it by the
residents of ‘Phase 1’ and ‘Phase 2’ of the Pickets Piece development. Although
information had been submitted about wider recreational needs across the
ward and the Borough, those were not to be the pressures and purposes
against which the appeal should be assessed. Given the scale, nature and
location of the appeal site this is a view that I share, as there is nothing before
me to show that the site was to address needs of residents elsewhere in the
Andover or beyond.
13. On the evidence submitted it would appear the open space provided by the
appeal site was not necessary to render the 2011 permission acceptable, as it
not only resulted in the amount of such space exceeding the accepted
standard, but it was also not required to be delivered as part of that
development. In this respect it conflicted with the tests in the Regulations.
14. Notwithstanding this, many local residents currently use the appeal site for
informal games, for social events, and for casual recreation such as walking,
jogging and just sitting out. They contended the site supplements the small
gardens at their surrounding houses. The owners of the land have not
authorised such activity although, through the absence of fencing, signage and
so on they have chosen not to prevent it either. Moreover, as the site is
overlooked from houses on 2 sides it no doubt offers those residents an
improved outlook. These are purposes to which the appeal site is being put.
However, unless the owner took proactive steps to the contrary, informal
recreation is likely to be taken up on any maintained piece of open space that
remained within an otherwise developed area, even if it was in excess of the
level of provision required by that development. Therefore, to my mind that in
itself cannot be sufficient to justify dismissing the appeal. Indeed, although the
landowners could not use the appeal site for other purposes without the
approval of the local planning authority, such informal usage could be readily
stopped if, for example, they chose to erect a fence around the site - a course
of action the planning obligation could not prevent.
15. Turning to its use as a Junior Sports Pitch, as there is no requirement in the
obligation for the appeal site to be handed over to the Council or for it to be
made available for public use, the obligation cannot ensure that purpose is
achieved. The Council nonetheless contended the obligation resulted in the
retention of the land while alternative means of securing the pitch, that lay
outside of the obligation, were pursued.

3

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 37

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Appeal Decision APP/C1760/Q/18/3216236

16. Two such ways were cited. The first was to encourage the owners to hand the
site over voluntarily. This had been explored but proved unsuccessful as, for
whatever reason, the owners withdrew late-on in negotiations. In the light of
this withdrawal, I have no reason to consider that avenue would be successful
if explored again in the future. Alternatively, it was said the land could be
acquired through a Compulsory Purchase Order or similar powers. That is a
path that has not yet been taken (partly no doubt because of seeking to secure
the owner’s voluntary consent) and so whether it will be pursued and, if it is,
how successful it is likely to be are, as yet, unknown.
17. The ability of these approaches to deliver the pitch is therefore open to
question. In any event, neither of these options appear to be dependent upon
the disputed paragraphs, but either or both could still be followed if this appeal
was allowed.
18. In the light of the above these options for acquiring the appeal site appear to
have only an indirect link to the obligation. To my mind it is most unlikely that
the obligation had been drafted with the specific intention of facilitating such
approaches, and these alternative methods of acquisition do not flow directly
from the obligation. Rather the opportunity to pursue such avenues appears to
arise from the lack of progress created by the need to reserve the appeal site
on the one hand but the inability of the obligation to bring it into public use on
the other.
19. Therefore, I conclude the planning obligation does not comply with the tests in
the Regulations as the disputed paragraphs were not necessary to make the
development acceptable. Putting that aside, of itself, the obligation does not
and cannot actually secure the appeal site as a Junior Sports Pitch for the use
of the residents of either ‘Phase 1’ or ‘Phase 2’ of Picket Piece. I consequently
find it does not ‘continue to serve a useful purpose’ in this regard.
20. In coming to this view, I acknowledge the health benefits of recreation land.
As there is an adequate supply of such land for the 2011 permission without
the Junior Sports Pitch these benefits are afforded only limited weight in
relation to that development. I accept the land is needed to meet the
requirements of the 4 other schemes and so would bring health benefits to
those residents. However, the failure to deliver the land through the obligation
before me, the absence of other obligations and the uncertainties that exist
concerning securing it through other methods that lie outside the obligation,
mean that benefit cannot justify the retention of the disputed paragraphs.
21. Early on in the consideration of application 18/01891/OBLN the appellants had
offered to provide compensatory open space behind a property called Lan
Clipper. However, that offer was subsequently withdrawn and was not before
me.
22. Many also objected about the possible impacts of a housing scheme on the site.
That though is not before me either, and, if any such application is
forthcoming, no doubt its implications in relation to outlook, traffic, wildlife,
services and so on will be considered. Residents also said they were sold their
properties on the basis that they would overlook open space, but that is not a
matter that can justify dismissing this appeal. In any event, allowing this
appeal does not permit any alternative proposals on the appeal site.

4

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 38

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Appeal Decision APP/C1760/Q/18/3216236

23. Finally, mindful that the proposal is not to be assessed primarily against the
development plan, any conflict with the policies in the Test Valley Borough
Revised Local Plan do not constitute material considerations sufficient to lead
me to a different view.
24. Accordingly, I conclude that the appeal should be allowed and the obligation
modified by the deletion of the disputed paragraphs. Moreover, as it would
then be no longer necessary, the definition of Junior Sports Pitch Land should
also be deleted from the obligation.

J P Sargent
INSPECTOR

5

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 39

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Appeal Decision APP/C1760/Q/18/3216236

APPEARANCES
FOR THE APPELLANTS
Ms B Gascoyne
Mr N Paterson-Neild
Mr C Pettit

Solicitor
Agent
Agent

FOR THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY
Mr K Harrington
Ms E Jones
Mr M Lowe
Ms K Wardell

Parks & Countryside Officer
Senior Planning Officer
Development Manager
Sports & Recreation Officer

INTERESTED PERSONS
Councillor L Banville
Mr G Atkins
Mr C Downs
Mrs H Flynn
Mrs H Neate
Mr D Rainey

Deputy Mayor, Andover Town Council
Local resident
Local resident
Local resident
Local resident
Local resident

DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED AT THE HEARING
1
2

Letter of notification of the Hearing date submitted by the Council
Statement of Common Ground submitted jointly by the Council and the
appellants

6

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 40

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022
119

Play
Area

30

18

6

0
18

4
17

18

2

Davenport

Recreation Ground
22

10

12

ITH
RA
LB
A
G

6

RO

Estcourt

AD

7
2

43

11

1

31

15

UM
DR
MO
ND

21

D

18

A
RO

23
21

L
TO

M

OX

AY
EW

O
DR

VE

Melrose Farm

Fallanden

Moss Bank
ED

N

Siteplan

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING
WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF
HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT.
UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT
AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

19/01485/FULLN
Page 41

B

dy

---7

7

6

11

W

013T

E-7

T310

OPP

--D7
P341

W

OPP

Page 42
5

13

---7
H433

0-E-

SH5
0-E-

SH5
7
0-E-

SA
AS

7

SH5

4
3

SH5
2-E-

OP

AS
7

7
OP

14

SH5

0
SH5
-E-7
AS

AS

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No 100019279.

AS

8

-E-7

T310

9

10

H497

D-7
2

0T31

OPP
12

1

AS
W

W

15

6---7
H40

OPP

AS
7
9--X

W

7-D16

H46

W

W
W

W

-D7

W

W

AS
1P34

AS

4
1
1
6
16

Affordable 40%
SH50
SH52
SH55
Total
Total Units

8.240 Acres

2 Bed House
3 Bed House
3 Bed House

3 Bed House
3 Bed House
4 Bed House
4 Bed House
4 Bed House
4 Bed House

J:\27000\27863 - Land North Of Ox Drove\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\Residential\Drawings - Planning\Layout\27863 - Planning Layout C.dwg - A-P10-010

Gross Site Area

4
2
1
1
1
1
10
T310
P341
H406
H433
H469
H497
Total

Private 60%

SCHEDULE OF ACCOMODATION

BCP

BIN COLLECTION POINT

AFFORDABLE DWELLING

HERRINGBONE BLOCK PAVING
TO MATCH ADJACENT COLOUR

MARSHALLS KEYBLOK

(to Secure By Design Standards)

1.8m HIGH TIMBER GATE

1.8m PRIVACY PANEL & 1.2m CHAINLINK FENCE

1.2m TIMBER POST & RAIL FENCE

1.8m HIGH TIMBER CLOSE BOARD FENCE

(Shown as guide. 600mm or above only.
(Please refer to engineering layout)

1.8m HIGH BRICK SCREEN WALL
ENGINEERING RETAINING WALL

EXISTING TREES TO BE RETAINED
TREES TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING HEDGEROWS TO BE RETAINED

(Hedgerows to be a maximum height
of 600mm within Visibility Splays)
(Refer to landscaping plans)

KEY
INDICATIVE TREE POSITIONS
INDICATIVE HEDGEROWS

ROR

1:200@A3
Drawing No

A-P10-010

26.01.21
Project No

27863

C

Revision

PN

Check by

Certificate FS 29637

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Glasgow Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

bartonwillmore.co.uk

Town Planning ● Master Planning & Urban Design ● Architecture ●
Landscape Planning & Design ● Infrastructure & Environmental Planning ●
Heritage ● Graphic Communication ●
Communications & Engagement ● Development Economics

Drawn by

Scale
Date

Planning Layout

Drawing Title

Picket Piece
Land North of Ox Drove, Andover

Project

PN
PL

02.11.21

PN

02.09.21 ROR

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn Ckd
13.01.21 ROR PN

Revision
A Revised Layout and
positions of plots 11&12
B Plot 7 mirrored, parking revised for
plots 1-6
C Removal of visitor spaces &
landscape repositioned on West
Boundary

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

7
5-E-

PLOT 1
F.F.L 89.85

PLOT 11
F.F.L 86.57

PLOT 16
F.F.L 88.80

PLOT 10
F.F.L 86.72

PLOT 9
F.F.L 86.72

EXISTING HEDGE

PLOT 8
F.F.L 87.25

SPORTS PITCH

EXISTING ROAD

B

A

8

10

---7
H497

7

6

11

5

13

4

12

3

AS
W

SH50

-D-7
T310
AS

6.74

+88.07

8

6.70

+88.22

6.51

6.55

W

86.57

+8

+86.36

W

SH50

-E-7
-E-7

+89.20

+88.68

+88.40

IS
TIN
G

-E-7

SH50
-E-7

+89.78

85.95+

11

5

PM

+89.67

+89.69
+89.64

89.25

+88.70

6

3

+89.85

89.85

+89.10

4

+86.45

+86.14

+85.83

2

+90.87

16

.10

+90.37

+90.36

+90.38

+89.91

88.80

+88.45

+89.00

+90.21

+89.86
+90.00

+89.33

+89.94

+89.30 +89.34

+88.81

+88.65

+88.55

+89.00

+90.50

+89.58

+88.38

+88.30

+87.55 +87.69

+87.30

+87.20

+87.90

88.50

+89.83

89

88.35+

15

+88.90

1

+87.50

87.95

.50

+89.70

+90.30

14

88

87.60

+87.00
+87.15

0
1/4

+86.73

EXISTING HEDGE

.95
87

12

0
13

.6
87

.57
86

+86.55

1/40

+86.05
+86.17

86.55

.70
88

6.19

7

+8

88.85

+89.19

88.50

10

+8

.05
88

9

86.72

+8

+88.71

+87.67

W

6.56

87.25
+87.25
+87.12

+8

+8

.25

SH52
-E-7
-E
SH55
-7

AS

W

AS

Scale : 1/500

6.41

+86.56

6.42
+8

87

A

16

.90+

+87.52

86

+8

T
EN
PM
LO

.72

LO

VE

DE
T

EN

EX

W

J:\27000\27863 - Land North Of Ox Drove\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\Residential\Drawings - Planning\Layout\27863 - Street Scenes.dwg - A-P13-010

15

C

EX

VE
DE

PROPOSED PUBLIC
OPEN SPACE

86

2

14

1

B

ING
IST

EXISTING HEDGE

W

C

9

OPP

7 Galbraith Road, Picket Piece
Andover, Hampshire, SP11 6AZ

PLOT 1
F.F.L 89.85

W

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No 100019279.

Scale : 1/200

Section C-C

EXISTING ROAD

Scale : 1/200

Section B-B

PLOT 12
F.F.L 86.55

OPP

PROPOSED DRIVEWAY

---7

EXISTING HEDGE

H433

Scale : 1/200

-7

Andover, Hampshire, SP11 6AZ

OPP

Section A-A

--D7

PLOT 7
F.F.L 88.50

W

P341

PLOT 8
F.F.L 87.25

OPP

EXISTING ROAD

-E-7

T310

12 Galbraith Road, Picket Piece,

PLOT 2
F.F.L 89.85

-D
T310

PLOT 3
F.F.L 89.25

AS

PLOT 4
F.F.L 89.25

-E-7

T310

PLOT 5
F.F.L 88.85

AS
W

---7

W

H406

W

W

PLOT 6
F.F.L 88.85

W

W

W

W

--X7

+86.16
W

H469

0

W

0
W

7

1/4

Page 43

W

1/2
W

--D
P341

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn Ckd
-

A-P13-010

Drawing No

1:200@A3

Scale

PL

Drawn by

-

Revision

PN

Check by

Certificate FS 29637

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Glasgow Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

bartonwillmore.co.uk

Town Planning ● Master Planning & Urban Design ● Architecture ●
Landscape Planning & Design ● Infrastructure & Environmental Planning ●
Heritage ● Graphic Communication ●
Communications & Engagement ● Development Economics

27863

Project No

13.01.21

Date

Street Scenes

Drawing Title

Picket Piece
Land North of Ox Drove, Andover

Project

Revision
-

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

AS

SH50
AS

OP

AS

AS

OP

Page 44

PLAN

FRONT ELEVATION

6332

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No 100019279.

6288

SIDE ELEVATION

J:\27000\27863 - Land North Of Ox Drove\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\Residential\Drawings - Planning\House Types\27863 - Garages.dwg - A-P11-131

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn Ckd
-

A-P11-131

-

Revision

PN

Check by

Certificate FS 29637

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Glasgow Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

bartonwillmore.co.uk

Town Planning ● Master Planning & Urban Design ● Architecture ●
Landscape Planning & Design ● Infrastructure & Environmental Planning ●
Heritage ● Graphic Communication ●
Communications & Engagement ● Development Economics

Drawing No

27863

PL

1:100@A3
27.01.21
Project No

Drawn by

Scale
Date

Double Garage
Plans & Elevations

Drawing Title

Picket Piece
Land North of Ox Drove, Andover

Project

Plots: 10-11

Revision
-

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Page 45

PLAN

3330

FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No 100019279.

6288

J:\27000\27863 - Land North Of Ox Drove\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\Residential\Drawings - Planning\House Types\27863 - Garages.dwg - A-P11-130

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn Ckd
-

A-P11-130

-

Revision

PN

Check by

Certificate FS 29637

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Glasgow Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

bartonwillmore.co.uk

Town Planning ● Master Planning & Urban Design ● Architecture ●
Landscape Planning & Design ● Infrastructure & Environmental Planning ●
Heritage ● Graphic Communication ●
Communications & Engagement ● Development Economics

Drawing No

27863

PL

1:100@A3
27.01.21
Project No

Drawn by

Scale
Date

Single Garage
Plans & Elevations

Drawing Title

Picket Piece
Land North of Ox Drove, Andover

Project

Plots: 7, 8, 9, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16

Revision
-

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Page 46

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Page 47

Page 48
TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1342 Sqft
Sales Name: BAYSWATER
House Type Code: H406---7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 15

Spec: A2

Date: 18.10.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

PLANNING 1 OF 2
Rev:

Description:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1: 100

Page 49
LOUNGE

KITCHEN /
DINING

HALL

FAMILY
AREA

WC

ST

BED 2

ENSUITE
2

BED 3

BATH

LANDING

BED 4

DRESSING
AREA

BED 1

CYL

LANDING

ENSUITE 1

TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1342 Sqft
Sales Name: BAYSWATER
House Type Code: H406---7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 16

Spec: A2

Date: 18.10.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

PLANNING 2 OF 2
Rev:

Description:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1: 100

Page 50
TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1536 Sqft
Sales Name: HOLDEN
House Type Code: H469--X7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 16

Spec: A1

Date: 26.08.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

PLANNING 1 OF 2
Rev:

Description:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1: 100

Page 51
9665

LOUNGE

KITCHEN
FAMILY

HALL

DINING

8540

STUDY

ST

WC

UTILITY

BED 1

ES

BED 2

CYL
BATH

BED 3

LANDING

BED 4

TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1536 Sqft
Sales Name: HOLDEN
House Type Code: H469--X7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 17

Spec: A1

Date: 26.08.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

PLANNING 2 OF 2
A

Please refer to Data Sheet
for full revisions

July 17

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1: 100

Page 52
TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1703 Sqft
Sales Name: CHELWORTH
House Type Code: H497---7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 13

Spec: A1

Date: 30.08.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

PLANNING 1 OF 2
Rev:

Description:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1: 100

Page 53
8990

STUDY

UTILITY
WC

BREAKFAST

KITCHEN

HALL
ST

FAMILY

10030

LOUNGE

DINING

BED 4

BATH

BED 3

LANDING

CYL
ENSUITE

BED 2

BED 1

TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1703 Sqft
Sales Name: CHELWORTH
House Type Code: H497---7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 14

Spec: A1

Date: 30.08.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

PLANNING 2 OF 2
Rev:

Description:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1: 100

Page 54
TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1001 Sqft
Sales Name: HADLEY
House Type Code: P341--D7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 13

Spec: A2

Date: 07.09.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

Planning 1 of 2
Rev:

Description:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1:100

Page 55
HALL

FAMILY

LOUNGE

WC

DINING

ST

dw

wm

KITCHEN

UTILITY

hob/
oven

f/f

td

EN SUITE

BED 2

ST

BED 1
w

w

w
BED 3

LANDING

BATH

TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1001 Sqft
Sales Name: HADLEY
House Type Code: P341--D7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 14

Spec: A2

Date: 07.09.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

Planning 2 of 2
Rev:

Description:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1:100

Page 56

FRONT ELEVATION
SIDE ELEVATION
REAR ELEVATION

TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1089 Sqft
Sales Name: KENNETT
House Type Code: T310-D-7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 15

Spec: A3

Date: 11.07.18

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

Planning 1 of 2
Refer to Data Sheet

01

Description:

Rev:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1:100

Page 57
8540

WC

ST

HALL

DINING

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

LOUNGE

KITCHEN

5383

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

BED 3

BED 2

ST
BATH

LANDING

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

BED 1
EN-SUITE

TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1089 Sqft
Sales Name: KENNETT
House Type Code: T310-D-7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 16

Spec: A3

Date: 11.07.18

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

Planning 2 of 2
Refer to Data Sheet

01

Description:

Rev:

Date:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1:100

Page 58
TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1089 Sqft
Sales Name: KENNETT
House Type Code: T310-E-7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 15

Spec: A3

Date: 13.10.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

Planning 1 of 2
Refer to Data Sheet

01

Description:

Rev:

Date:
Sept 17

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1:100

Page 59
LOUNGE

KITCHEN

WC

HALL

DINING

ST

TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 1089 Sqft
Sales Name: KENNETT
House Type Code: T310-E-7

Checked: GDT

Drawn: GDT

Drawing No: 16

Spec: A3

Date: 13.10.16

WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

Planning 2 of 2
Refer to Data Sheet

01

Description:

Rev:

Date:
Sept 17

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1:100

Page 60
9290

LOUNGE

HALL
WC

KITCHEN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

ST

DINING

4790

FRONT ELEVATION 2

Loft
Hatch

LANDING

W

BATH

BED 3

W

ST

W

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

BED 1

W

BED 2

FRONT ELEVATION 1

ROOF
BELOW

M4(2) CAT 2: ACCESSIBLE AND
ADAPTABLE DWELLINGS COMPLIANT

SIDE ELEVATION

**

TOTAL FLOOR AREA : 89 m2 / 958 Sq ft

3B/5P
WARNING TO HOUSE-PURCHASERS.
Buyers are warned that this is a working drawing and the contents of this drawing
may be subject to change during the progress of the build process. The layout,
form, content and dimensions specified are included for general guidance only.
The finishes or features shown may alter in respect of individual properties.
Whilst we make every effort to ensure our drawings are up to date there may
from time to time be an unavoidable delay in updating these due to changes in
regulations and/or re-planning. Purchasers are advised to check with the Sales
Adviser whether any alterations have been made to this drawing. The contents of
this drawing do not constitute a contract, part of any contract or warranty unless
specifically incorporated into the contract. They should not be relied upon for the
purposes of entering into a contract to purchase any property.

Sales Name: SH55
House Type Code: SH55---7
Spec: AFFORDABLE Drawing No: 11
Drawn: GDT

Date: 07.10.16

PLANNING DRAWINGS
A

Refer to Data Sheet
for full details

Feb, 18

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Scale: 1: 100

Checked: GDT

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

ITEM 8
APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL
AMENDMENTS

CASE OFFICER

19/02639/FULLN
FULL APPLICATION - NORTH
04.11.2019
Mr Lunn and Mr Hicks
18 Nestor Close, Andover, Hampshire, SP10 3JX,
ANDOVER TOWN (HARROWAY)
Erection of a 3 bedroom dwelling
Amended plans submitted:
 22.06.2021
 14.07.2021
 12.10.2021
 15.10.2021
 02.11.2021
 18.11.2021
Miss Emma Jones

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application is presented to Northern Area Planning Committee at the
request of a member.
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
2.1 18 Nestor Close is an end of terrace property in a cul-de-sac of similar
properties. The site currently consists of part of the garden of number 18 Nestor
Close. Immediately adjacent to the north east of the site is a footpath (public
right of way). The site is relatively level and mostly laid to grass. There are
boundary fences to all boundaries.
3.0 PROPOSAL
3.1 The proposal consists of the erection of a two storey detached three bedroom
dwelling, within the side garden of the existing dwelling at 18 Nestor Close. The
materials to be used in its construction would match the existing dwelling.
Accommodation would be provided within the roof of the proposed dwelling, with
a dormer and rooflight windows to the side elevations. The proposal also
includes provision for car parking to the front of the dwelling and a rear garden.
3.2 The proposed development is the same as that which was permitted under
application reference 16/01166/FULLN (see paragraph 4.1), but which was not
implemented before the planning permission expired.
3.3 An amended site/block plan has been submitted during the consideration of the
application to clarify a discrepancy regarding the position of the site and the
dwelling in relation to the Public Right of Way to the north. A Construction
Method Statement has also been submitted, together with vehicle tracking plans
in relation to the proposed car parking provision.

Page 61

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

3.4 The applicant’s agent has clarified the following;
 The applicant is the owner of No.18 (including the application site).
 The outline of the proposed single storey rear extension to No.18 (to be
constructed under PD) is shown on drawing 03B in the interests of good
planning. My understanding is that this future extension is to replace the
existing extension shown demolished as part of this application.
 The proposed rear extension to No.18 is not intended to form part of the
current application.
4.0 HISTORY
4.1 16/01166/FULLN; Erection of a 3 bed dwelling – Permission - 04.08.2016
4.2 16/00899/PDHN – Notification of proposed works to a dwelling – Single storey
rear extension – Prior Approval Not Required - 20.05.2016
4.3 06/01462/FULLN; Widen path to allow vehicular access - 11, 13, 15 And 17
Nestor Close – Permission - 20.06.2006
5.0 CONSULTATIONS
5.1 Trees; No objection
5.2

Environmental Protection; Condition recommended in respect of
contamination.

5.3

Refuse/Recycling; No objection

5.4

Highways; Comments (summarised);
 Whilst Highways Development Planning raises no in-principle objections
to this proposal, concerns are raised with regard to the proposed layout;
 Due to the restricted nature of Nestor Close, a tandem parking layout
raises concerns with regards to excessive manoeuvrability. As such a
tandem parking layout is considered unacceptable;
 With this in mind, TVBC will need to determine in their capacity as local
parking authority that the proposed level of parking provision falls in line
with adopted standards;
 Following previous concerns regarding submitted vehicle tracking,
additional swept path drawings have been submitted by the applicant for
review. The Highway Authority considers the vehicle tracking to be
satisfactory;
 A Construction Method Statement has also been submitted. Following
review whilst the information submitted would be considered broadly
acceptable, this should still be dealt with via suitable condition that will
need to be discharged prior to any form of development taking place. The
method statements will be expected to demonstrate via vehicle tracking
that contractor’s cars can park in a safe and efficient manner in the
proposed spaces, in addition the applicant is proposing to apply for a
licence to store materials on the highway. Whilst this may be acceptable
in-principle, the applicant will be required to have the licence approved
before the condition could be discharged. They would need apply for a
S.171 Licence under the Highways Act 1980 and to provide (amongst
others) a risk assessment and signing and guarding proposals, along

Page 62

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

with a 1:500 scale plan. The submitted condition information would also
need to include the likely frequency and type of vehicle visiting the site in
order to determine if the proposed construction is suitable in highways
terms.
5.5

Countryside Service (Public Rights of Way); Objection, raising;
 The application proposed development that would obstruct the definitive
line of Andover Footpath 47. Plan 15112.01B shows the position of the
proposed dwelling on top of the right of way. Furthermore drawing
15112.20 shows landscape planting and fencing which has the potential
to restrict the definitive width of Footpath 47 with work taking place
outside of the boundary. The granting of planning permission does not
authorise developers to obstruct a public right of way;
 We must therefore object to the application as currently presented and
request that the applicant submit a plan of existing and amend their
submitted plans in order to keep the right of way clear.
(Case officer note: An amended site/block plan has been submitted clarifying
that the existing right of way footpath is not within the application site, and the
proposed dwelling would not obstruct it.)

5.6 Ramblers Association; Comments;
 The site is bordered on the north side by footpath AV47. The new
building will be very close to the footpath albeit I assume the intention is
to retain the 6 foot wooden border fencing. Even with this the building
will tower over the footpath detracting from its current rural feel.
However, if this is the only objection to the proposal we would not wish to
stand in its way provided footpath AV47 remains fully open to the public
during and on completion of the building works.
6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 06.12.2019
6.1 Andover Town Council; Objection, raising;
 Over development for size of plot;
 Out of keeping with the rest of the Close.
6.2

2 x letters; Comments from 10 and 12 Nestor Close, raising (summarised);
 No objection to construction. Would be useful to see a construction
phase health and safety plan and site logistics plan, to give comfort that
access and egress to the properties along the access road in Nestor
Close will not be impacted by construction traffic, noise during
construction will not be an issue, and construction traffic will not impact
on parking within Nestor Close;
 No objection to new property being built. Nestor Close is a very tight culde-sac with limited parking due to lots of drop curbs. Concern as to what
would the implications of lots of building material vehicles cause to the
local community. Possibility of vans and lorries blocking driveways.
Property itself is at the end of a single track drive way and next to a
public entrance to a public walkway. Lorries and vans will block this
entrance for long periods of the day for weeks and months whilst the
property is built.

Page 63

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

7.0 POLICY
7.1 Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)
COM2 – Settlement Hierarchy
E1 – High Quality Development in the Borough
E2 – Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough
E5 – Biodiversity
E7 – Water Management
E8 – Pollution
LHW4 – Amenity
T1 – Managing Movement
T2 – Parking Standards
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
8.1 The main planning considerations are:







The principle of development
Character and appearance
Amenity and pollution
Highway network
Water management
Biodiversity

8.2 Principle of development
The site is located within the settlement boundary of Andover, as defined by the
RLP inset maps, where development and redevelopment is permitted in
principle by RLP policy COM2.
8.3 A significant material planning consideration in the determination of this
planning application is that planning permission was previously granted for an
identical scheme at the site in 2016 under application reference
16/01166/FULLN (see paragraph 4.1 of this report). Whilst the approved
development was not implemented, it is considered that there have been no
material changes since the planning permission was granted, either in terms of
planning policy, or in terms of the site condition or constraints, that would mean
that planning permission should now be refused.
8.4 Character and appearance
Nestor Close is made up of semi-detached and terraced dwellings, which have
distinctive steep pitched roofs which are a strong design feature. The existing
dwellings are also designed so that both narrow gable frontages are presented
to Nestor Close, as well as wider frontages with gables on the side elevations.

Page 64

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

8.5

The proposed dwelling would be detached and set back from the main building
line at this part of Nestor Close. The proposed resultant plot would also be
narrower than others in the vicinity. In these respects the proposed dwelling
would differ from the existing built form. The proposed dwelling would,
however, have a steep pitched roof and would present a gable frontage to
Nestor Close, and the design and spacing of the fenestration to the front and
rear elevations would be in keeping with the existing dwellings. With the
position of the proposed development being at the end of the cul–de-sac and
set back within its plot, there would be limited views in which it would be seen
in conjunction with the street scene as a whole. Overall it is considered that
the proposed dwelling shares strong design detailing with the area in which it is
located, and as such it does respect and complement the area in accordance
with Policy E1 of the RLP.

8.6

The site itself contains no trees, but to the northern boundary are a line of
mature Poplars, which are considered to be important landscape features.
The proposed dwelling is at the limit of the required root protection for these
trees, and it is considered that the proposed dwelling could be constructed
without adverse harm to their health and future retention, with the site
boundary fence serving as tree protection. The proposed development would
accord with RLP policy E2 in this respect.

8.7

Amenity and pollution
The proposed dwelling would be set back from the front elevation of 18 Nestor
Close, resulting in it projecting beyond their rear elevation, including their
existing single storey rear extension which is proposed to be demolished to
accommodate the proposed development. The submitted plans do indicate a
replacement extension to the rear of 18 Nestor Close, however no such
development has been built, and no planning permissions exist either, and
therefore no weight can be given to this. The applicant owns this adjacent
dwelling, however, and so it is within their control to build an extension. The
occupants of this neighbouring property have also raised no objections to the
proposals.

8.8

In being to the north east of the existing dwelling at 18 Nestor Close, it is not
considered that the proposed dwelling would result in any significant
overshadowing or adverse loss of sunlight/daylight to this nearest neighbouring
property. The proposed dwelling would contain no windows within its side
elevation facing 18 Nestor Close, however three rooflight windows would be
installed within the south west facing roof slope of the proposal. Given their
positions within the roof, and relationship to this neighbouring property, it is not
considered that they would result in any adverse overlooking of number 18.
The windows within the rear elevation of number 18 would allow oblique views
towards the proposed dwelling, however their first floor window closest to the
new dwelling serves a bathroom, and it is therefore not considered that this
would result in any adverse impacts on their amenity in terms of outlook. The
ground floor windows already have their outlook affected by their existing rear
extensions.

Page 65

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

8.9

As the proposed dwelling is set back within its plot, the rear garden would have
less depth than other surrounding dwellings, and therefore if an extension or
outbuilding were to be erected in the future under Permitted Development, it is
considered that this could have a detrimental impact on the occupiers of 18
Nestor Close, as there would be the potential that much of the rear boundary
would be dominated by development which could be overbearing. It is
therefore considered that the removal of Permitted Development Rights for
extensions and outbuildings at the proposed new dwelling is reasonable in this
instance.

8.10

It is considered that the proposed development would be sufficiently separated
from other surrounding neighbouring properties, including those within
Lancaster Close to the rear, so as not to impact adversely on their residential
amenity, in terms of a loss of daylight, sunlight and privacy.

8.11

Concerns have been raised in relation to noise associated with the
construction of the proposed development. In view of the scale of the proposed
development, the proposed construction works would be anticipated to be
temporary in nature and short term, and would not give rise to adverse impacts
on amenity. If any unreasonable levels of noise were to arise from the site
during construction, this could be dealt with through separate Environmental
Health powers.

8.12

The proposal is not considered to have any adverse impacts on residential
amenity, and would comply with RLP policies E8 and LHW4.

8.13

Highway network
The proposed dwelling would have three bedrooms, and would therefore
require an on-site car parking provision of two spaces in accordance with the
Council’s adopted car parking standards as set out by RLP policy T2 and
Annex G. The submitted plans show that three car parking spaces are
proposed to be provided at the site to serve the proposed dwelling, and two car
parking spaces would be provided to serve the existing dwelling at the site.
This would be provided on an existing gravelled parking area to the front of 18
Nestor Close, as well as an existing area of grass. The Highway Authority has
raised concerns with regards to the provision of a tandem parking arrangement
to serve the proposed development, due to the restricted nature of Nestor
Close and the need for excessive manoeuvrability, however as set out above
only two car parking spaces are actually required, which would remove the
need for tandem parking. Vehicle tracking diagrams have been submitted to
demonstrate that two car parking spaces could be provided for each dwelling
that would be accessible, utilising the private shared access way for
manoeuvring as per the situation at other existing properties at this part of
Nestor Close, with no encroachment onto the adjacent Public Right of Way,
and the Highway Authority has confirmed that this is acceptable. There would
be an increase in activity across the frontage of the site, and there is potential
for the existing gravel to migrate. It is considered reasonable to require that a
non-migratory surface be provided, and a condition has been recommended
accordingly.

Page 66

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

8.14

Concerns have been raised in relation to traffic issues associated with the
construction of the proposed development. In view of the scale of the proposed
development, the proposed construction works would be anticipated to be
temporary in nature and short term. Notwithstanding this, a Construction
Method Statement has been submitted, which sets out measures to minimise
disruption to surrounding residential properties. The Highway Authority has
commented on this, and advised that further information would be required, but
that this could be dealt with by a condition, which is recommended.
Furthermore, any unreasonable traffic impacts arising as a result of the
construction can be dealt with through separate Highways/Police powers.

8.15

An amended site/block plan has been submitted during the consideration of
the application which clarifies that the existing Public Right of Way footpath to
the north of the site (Footpath 47) is not within the application site, and the
proposed dwelling would not obstruct it. This would therefore remain available
for use by the public, and would be separated from the proposed dwelling by
close board fencing. A separate licence would be required in the event that
the footpath needed to be closed. An informative note is also recommended in
respect of the footpath.

8.16

The proposal is not considered to have any adverse impacts on the highway or
rights of way networks, and would comply with RLP policies T1 and T2.

8.17

Water management
A condition is recommended in order to comply with the requirements of RLP
policy E7 in respect of water consumption.

8.18

Biodiversity
Natural England advises that there are high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus
input to the water environment of the Solent region caused by wastewater from
existing housing and from agricultural sources and that these nutrients are
causing eutrophication at the designated nature conservation sites which
includes the Solent Water SPA. This results in dense mats of green algae that
are impacting on the Solent’s protected habitats and bird species.

8.19

Natural England advises that one way to address the uncertainty is to achieve
nutrient neutrality whereby an individual scheme would not add to nutrient
burdens. In this instance, a nutrient budget calculation was undertaken
identifying that the proposed scheme, in the absence of any mitigation
generated, will generate a total additional nitrate output of 2.9kg/N/yr.

8.20

To address this issue, Test Valley Borough Council has implemented a
strategic nitrate offsetting mitigation scheme. This strategic scheme comprises
the offsetting of agricultural land previously utilised for the purposes of pig
farming, located at Roke Manor Farm, Awbridge.

8.21

Evidence of this historic land use at Roke has been provided to Natural
England and no objection has been raised to this classification. Following the
completion of a legal agreement with the landowner, this land is now being
removed from agricultural use in accordance with a set timetable set out in the

Page 67

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

associated management plan. The management plan also includes a schedule
of ongoing maintenance, preventing any future agricultural use onsite with
Natural England raising no objection to the timetable and ongoing maintenance
measures set out in the management plan.
8.22

Following the implementation of this strategic offsetting scheme at Roke, a
substantial net reduction in nitrate loading within the Solent catchment area
would be achieved. This overall net reduction is utilised as nitrate ‘credits’,
whereby a tariff of financial contributions is calculated based on the cost of
implementing and maintaining the strategic offsetting scheme per kg/TN/yr
saved. Currently, the financial contribution is £3,000 per kilogram total nitrogen
(and this comprises a “credit”) to be offset, with the methodology of calculating
the financial cost monitored and kept under review as well as subject to
indexation. In addition, an administration fee of £100, which is also kept under
review, is incurred form the monitoring of s106 agreements.

8.23

To monitor the purchasing of nitrate credits and to prevent any possibility of
credits for the same land being bought twice, Test Valley Borough Council
maintains a record of credits purchased such that credits are only made
available to applicants where that credit exists. In this instance, sufficient
capacity exists to offset the nitrate loading generated by the proposed
development subject to the securing of the financial contribution calculated as
follows:
2.9Kg/TN/yr x £3,000 per kg = £8,700

8.24

This financial contribution will be secured through the completion of a legal
agreement prior to determination. In addition, a Grampian condition will also be
necessary to ensure that the development is not occupied until the land at
Roke ceases to be under agricultural use, in order to allow the management
plan to be implemented. Given the previous completion of the legal agreement
between the landowner at Roke and TVBC, it is considered that there is a
reasonable prospect of the strategic nitrate offsetting scheme being
implemented and therefore, the application of a Grampian condition is
appropriate.

8.25

On this basis, an appropriate assessment has been completed concluding that
the proposal would achieve nutrient neutrality. As a result, the proposed
development would not result in adverse effects on the Solent designated sites
through water quality impacts arising from nitrate generation and the
application is in accordance with policy E5 of the RLP.

9.0
9.1

CONCLUSION
Subject to the completion of a S106 legal agreement in relation to ensuring
nutrient neutrality, and subject to conditions, the proposed development is
considered to be acceptable, and would comply with the relevant policies of
the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.

Page 68

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

10.0 RECOMMENDATION
Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building that subject to the
completion of a legal agreement to secure a financial contribution
towards the strategic nitrate offsetting scheme at Roke Manor Farm, to
ensure the development achieves nutrient neutrality, then
PERMISSION subject to:
1.
The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
2.
The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted
plans, numbers;
15112.01 D
15112.02 C
15112.03 B
15112.04 B
15112.05 B
15122.20 A
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.
3.
Notwithstanding the details submitted, no development shall take
place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: Details are required prior to the commencement of
development in the interests of highway safety during the
construction of the development in accordance with Test Valley
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.
4.
No development shall take place above DPC level of the
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure the development has a satisfactory external
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1.
5.
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until
space, to serve both the existing and proposed dwellings, has
been laid out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of
vehicles to enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward
gear in accordance with the approved plan, and this space shall
thereafter be reserved for such purposes at all times. This space
shall also be surfaced in a non-migratory material and retained as
such at all times.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

Page 69

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

The hard and soft landscaping of the site shall be implemented
and maintained in accordance with the details contained within
the submitted “Hard and Soft Landscaping Proposals” document
(reference MWA 15112 Supplementary Information September
2016 Issue 1). The soft landscaping shall be planted in the first
available planting season following the commencement of the
development hereby permitted.
Reason: To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and
to contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E2.
The development hereby permitted shall not be permitted to be
occupied until agricultural activity on that part of the land at Roke
Manor Farm to which the legal agreement that accompanies this
planning permission relates, has ceased. This being no earlier
than 31st October 2021, in accordance with the Holbury
Consultancy Roke Manor Farm Nitrate Mitigation scheme report
(dated May 2021).
Reason: To ensure the mitigation required to prevent the adverse
effect that arises from premature occupation (relative to when the
mitigation will be in place) does not adversely affect the special
interest of the Solent and Southampton Water Special Protection
Area, in accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley Borough
Revised Local Plan (2016), and the Habitats Regulations.
The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day
water efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015.
Reason: In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised
Local Plan 2016.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order
revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification no
extensions, garages, outbuildings shall be erected within the
curtilage of the new dwelling hereby permitted other than those
expressly authorised by this permission.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority can exercise
control in the locality in the interest of the local amenities in
accordance with Policy E2 of the Revised Local Plan 2016.
In the event that contamination is found at any time during
demolition and/or construction works, the presence of such
contamination shall be reported in writing to the Local Planning
Authority without delay and development shall be suspended on
the affected part of the site until a remediation scheme for dealing
with that contamination has been approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved remediation scheme shall be
implemented and, if requested, a verification report, for the
purpose of certifying adherence to the approved remediation
scheme, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior
to the site being brought in to use.

Page 70

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Reason: To ensure that contamination can be dealt with
appropriately and to ensure that the development does not
contribute to, is not put at unacceptable risk from, or adversely
affected by, unacceptable levels of pollution from contamination
sources at the development site in accordance with Policy E8 of
the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.
Notes to applicant:
1.
In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has
had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a
positive and proactive approach to development proposals
focused on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents
in a positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application
advice service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may
arise in dealing with the application and where possible
suggesting solutions.
2.
Attention is drawn to the requirements of the Agreement dated
XXXXXX under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 which affects this development.
3.
In respect of the Public Right of Way (Footpath 47) the applicant
is advised of the following;
 Nothing connected with the development or its future use
should have an adverse effect on the Public Right of Way,
which must remain available for public use at all times;
 There must be no surface alterations to a public Right of
Way without the consent of Hampshire County Council as
Highway Authority. To carry out any such works without
this permission would constitute an offence under s131
Highways Act 1980;
 No builders or contractor’s vehicles, machinery, equipment,
materials, scaffolding or anything associated with the
works should be left on or near the Public Right of Way so
as to obstruct, hinder or provide a hazard to users.
4.
This decision does not relate to the proposed extension to the
rear of 18 Nestor Close, which is shown on the submitted plans
and which may require planning permission. Please ensure that
the necessary permission has been granted prior to the
commencement of any such development.

Page 71

REDON WAY

8

12

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

9

7

6

13

18

17

Munnings
Ct

19

Hogarth
Court
20

3
1

17

23

Court
14

27

Munnings
25
24

(um)

Court

32
30
28

Path

33
31
29

34

Hogarth

19

21

22

2

18

13
12

11

6

Tank

17

18

9

17

18

Sta

9

OR
C

LO
S

E

10

El S
ub

ST
ER
C

2

LO

SE

10

1

NE

ST

15

LA

1

19

NC
A

21

2

15

9a

RO

AD

9

3
0

2

0

HA

8

LIF
A

XC

LO

SE

14

o2

21

11
t

DEL
L
11

1

11a

1t

o1

Garage

N

Siteplan

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING
WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF
HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT.
UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT
AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

19/02639/FULLN
Page 72

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Page 73

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Page 74

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Page 75

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Page 76

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

Page 77

18

18

18A

Plot 18 Space 1 - Egress Swept Path

2

Standar1d Car

2

1

Plot 18 Space 2 - Egress Swept Path

Standar2d Car

1

2

1

2

1

Plot 18A Space 1 - Egress Swept Path

2

1

Standard Car

Plot 18A Space 2 - Egress Swept Path

2

1

2

Standard Car

1

Public Footpath

18A

18

2

1

2

1

Public Footpath

18A

18

2

1

2

1

18A

Public Footpath

Public Footpath

Standard Car

Public Footpath

Existing Shared Access

g Shared Access

Plot 18A Space 2 - Access Swept Path

18

18

2

1

2

1

18A

Standard Car
Plot 18A Space 1 - Access Swept Path

2

1

2

1

18A

g Shared Access

Plot 18 Space 2 - Access Swept Path

Standard Car

Public Footpath

Standard Car

Plot 18 Space 1 - Access Swept Path

Existing Shared Access

Public Footpath

Existing Shared Access

Public Footpath

Existing Shared Access
g Shared Access

Page 78

g Shared Access

18

2.578

e
a
o
d
a
tsc
siy
n
m
o
rlska
slih
ra
e
d
/tzo
srto
na
in
d
td
Ii
a
d
w
n
rg
s,ih
ie
to
d
n
ld
w
a
e
y
p
kito
h
e
frthw
ti
h
a
d
:zu
sra
e
io
lsw
n
rg
lio
lfh
e
tn
e
a
p
o
stl

e
o
p
rd
b
o
u
m
a
e
rc
o
sd
e
rn
fd
sa
ih
p
Ti
o
fnip
h
sm
e
tsrh
O
d
w
tin
ra
im
a
v
n
e
c
u
Slyre
ie
a
rt
H
e
o
rfe
rlo
c
h
e
lo
O
trn
d
tn
o
ra
fb
o
v
n
e
c
u
Sy
fre
h
a
l
C
o
w
c
rc
)(C
g
e
n
.h
io
O
tip
fn
ya
rifrtSsM
y
'e
tsa
j
c
e
n
ic
LN
e
u
m
A
R
G
1
0
L3
a
7
b
1
2
:3
P
c
.e
c
n
ro
e
p
t
d
h
e
a
th
.tn
a
w
tc
a
ie
c
a
n
isu
yc
o
rifyti a
lb
il

a
D
w
rn

GE

C
o
m
m
se
n
t

FIRST ISSUE

D
e
a
t

18/11/21

Scale

1:200

GE

Drawn By

2021/6317/001

Drawing No.

CC

Checked By

Rev.

A3

P1

Parking Swept Path Analysis

Drawing Title

18 Nestor Close, Andover

John Lunn Building Services
Project

Client

Tel: 01483 861681 / 020 7078 9662 www.rgp.co.uk

Shackleford Suite, Mill Pool House, Mill Lane, Godalming, GU7 1EY
30 Stamford Street, London, SE1 9LQ

Transport Planning and Infrastructure Design Consultants

P1

18A

R
e
.v

4.572m
1.769m
1.488m
0.249m
1.713m
4.00s
5.100m

RESIDUAL HAZARDS

Standard Car
Overall Length
Overall Width
Overall Body Height
Min Body Ground Clearance
Max Track Width
Lock to lock time
Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius

0.951

4.572

18A

a
b
e
y
o
d
u
tib
c
re
a
rl w
lw
isko
u
ra
m
lssa
h
lsa
e
td
i tI
c
w
o
m
n
a
e
w
h
g
p
e
,ta
c
o
irkp
o
c
e
rn
trt
m
e
sa
ssn
e
m
kd
a
n
so
tn
p
h
te
o
ip
tv
e
d
rd
e
a
m
tse
.n
t

18

NOTES
This drawing has been prepared for the purpose
of planning discussions and does not constitute
a detailed design drawing, or construction
drawing. A Design Hazard Inventory has been
prepared by RGP setting out the hazards which
have been designed out. This is available upon
request.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 27 January 2022

